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Letter from the Chancellor

Vandetbilt University continues to excelin a very challenging environment. We remain focused
on our core tission and set our priorities with a keen eye on the important role that Vanderbilt
plays in society. Educating amazing students with enormous potential, pursuing breakthroughs in
research across the entire range of disciplinary inquiry, and providing new and more cffective
ways to prevent and treat disease determine how we invest in our people and infrastructure.

Vanderbilt’s fimpact and visibility reached new heights i the past year. Yet it did so despite the
ever-challenging fiscal and economic environment in which the great research universities
operate, The bhnt and short-sighted cuts in research and Medicare through sequestration
demanded prudence on both the operating and capital sides. Health care is undergoing rapid
transformations, buffeted by market adaptations and political decisions at all kvek of
govemment, More than ever, quality and efficiency are driving not simply the thetoric but the
actions of payers and providers. Vanderbilt, with its focus on inmovation, excellence in care, and
quality outcomes is positioned well to thrive in this new health care world.

Long-term stewardship remains the lodestar for managing our finances and meeting our mision.
While this perspective i increasingly rare in our society, we feel fortunate to be able to manage
through short-term disruptions knowing that our responsbilities are inter-generational This past
year has been a strong one, for the many successes but also for maintaining our strong
foundation for the future.

Sincerely,

Nicholas S. Zeppos
Chancellor




Vanderbilt University Staftistics

2012/1013 201172012 20102011 200972010 20082008
STUDENTS
Undergraduate 6,796 6,817 6,879 6,794 6.637
Graduate and professional 5,914 6,019 5,835 5,712 5455
Total fall enrollment 12,710 12,836 12,714 12,506 12,092
Undergraduate admissions
Applizd 28,348 24,837 21,811 19,353 16,944
Accepted 4,034 4,078 3,914 3,899 4,292
Enrolled 1,608 1,601 1,600 1,599 1,569
Sekctiviy 14.2% 16.4% 17.9% 20.1%% 25.3%
Yild 39.9% 39.3% 40.9% $1.0% 36.6%
Degrees conferred
Baccahureate 1,675 1,673 1,735 1,583 1,568
Master’s 1421 1,432 1,252 1,280 1,235
MD. 11t 99 97 18 103
Other doctoral 531 516 556 515 477
Totaldegrees conferred 3,758 3,720 3.640 3,496 3,383
Undergraduate six-year graduation rate 92.5% 92.2% 91.9% 20.6% 90.7%
Undergraduate tuition 41,088 S8 {40,320 18,952 37,632 S 36,100
%% crease over prir year 1.9% 3.5% 3.5% 4.2% 4.9%
HOSPITALS AND CLINICS
Lirensed beds 1,019 985 916 916 836
Inpatiznt days 367,292 285270 282,547 272,731 265,733
Discharges 57,768 53,818 52,453 51,874 51,575
Average dailr census 842 782 774 747 728
Average kngth of stay (days) 53 533 54 53 5.2
Average occupancy kvel 83.3% 83.6% 84.5% 83.6%% 87.i%
Hospitalsurgical operations - dnpatiant 22,396 22,183 22,246 21,702 21,283
Hospitalsurgizal operations - outpatint 30,003 28,815 25,650 23,790 18,597
Ambulstory visits 1,833,337 1,725,901 1,586,395 1,450,196 1,266,255
Energency visits 119,225 114,051 109,987 108,398 102,631
LifeFlight (helicopter) missions 1,359 2,550 2,203 2,152 2,112
Case mix hidex 1.93 1.99 1.93 1.93 1.89
FACULTY AND STAFF
Fulltime faculy 3,672 3,551 3,448 3,309 3.1
Fulbtime sl 20,160 20,119 19,192 18,089 17,160
Part-time faculty 430 439 396 424 402
Part-time staff 764 768 798 683 676
Total headcount 25,026 24,877 23,834 22,505 21,369
RESEARCH EXPENDITURES FUNDING
(i1 thousands)
Federal grants and contracts 312,312 § . 310,786 330,211 279282 S 250,431
Nonfederal grants, contracts, and other » 62,982 57,625 54,694 57,880 61,061
Facilities and administrative costs recovery 137,719 142,663 140,205 124,526 114,509
Instiutionalresources, iwliding cost sharing 58,329 48.042 47,959 48,115 45,990
Totalresearch expenditures 571342 § 559,116 563,069 510,803 S 474,991
ENDOWNIENT
Market vahse (in thousands) 3635343 § 3360036 3,375,153 3,007,607 § 2833614
Endowment return 9.3% 1.3% 13.6% 8.9% -16.3%
Endowment per student 286022 S 261,767 265,167 20493 S 234,338
Endowment payout spending fornmla) +.3%% 4.4% 4.8% 5.2% 4.7%
Endowment payout (strategi: initiatives) - - 0.1% 9.1%%
Total endowment payout 4.3%% 4.4% 4.8% 5.3% 4.8%




Financial Overview

Vanderbik manages its operations with a focus on achieving ong-
term financial equilibrin. In an wpredictable external environ-
ment with such challenges as wnecrtain research fimding kvel,
concerns about riing health care costs, and the impact of market
changes, Vanderbilt remais steadfast in sctting priorities in an
effort to excel at research, discovery, service, and education for
generations to come. Fiscal 2013 was a chalknging year that pro-
duced sound financial resulis.

The university’s total net assets grew $320 million in fiseal 2013,
compared to a decrease of $71 miltion in fiseal 2012, as positive
investment returns were expernced and LIBOR rafes improved,
posiive by impacting the valie of interest rate exchange agreements.
The university’s change in warestricted net assets from operating
activities It Theal 2013 was negative $44 million, a decrease fiom
$158 million in fiscal 2012, This decrease primarily was related toa
change in the balance sheet estimate of the net realizable vake of
patient receivables.

The demand for a Vanderbilt education remams strong, The nunber
of applications received for both wndergraduate and preféssional
schools achived new records, Undergraduate applications for the
fallof 2012 grew 14.1% to a total of 28,348 with a selectivity rate

Financial Position

of 14.2%, compared to 16.4% for the fall 0f 2011—and the fall of
2013 scketivity rate was at a record 12.7% kevel

Vandesbik remains committed to enswring that young people of
every backpround can attend the wuniversity, ereating a dynamic
karning comumunily that benefis every student. Vanderbil's deci:
sion to replace need-based loans with schohrship support through
Opportunity Vanderbik (OV) gives taknted undergraduates oppor-
tunitiss to consider career choices and educational dreams without
the prospect of significant debt.

Vanderbilt continues to kad in research. Faculy recruiting and
retention remain vibrant, enhancig the overall educational experi-
ence for all Vanderbik students. Fundrabing continues to grow and
expand in support of Vanderbik’s long-tenn privritses,

Despite cerent envirormental challenges, Vanderbilt & positioned
to remain 2 ditinguihed research institution with world-clss fac.
uly and staff; topuoteh students, and oulstanding health care ser-
vices. Whils the university is well-positioned to sustain excellence
and take advantage of fbure opportuni s, it is important to remain
keenlk aware ofthe chalknges ahead.

As of Tune 30, 2013, Vanderbil's financial position consisted of
assets totaling $7,606 million and liabilities totaling 52,267 million,
resuling in net assets of$5,339 million.

Summary of Financfal Position
as of June 30, in millions

2013 012

ASSETS
Workig capitalcash and hwestments $ 1,120 $ 1,210
Endownent and other cash

and vestments 4,054 3,776
Accounts and contrimtions reca fvable 565 675
Property, plant, and equipment, net 1,781 1,728
Prepaid expenses and other assets 86 82

Total assels $ 7606 § 7,471
LIABILITIES
Payables and acerued liabilities S 626 S 636
Deferredrevenus 93 119
Interest rate exchange agreenents 207 316
Taxabl debt for quidity 250 250
Project and equipnent-related debt 1,091 1,131

Total liabilities 2,267 o am
NET ASSETS
Urrestrizted net assets controlled by

Vanderbilt University 2,785 2,560
Unrestricted net assets rehted to non-

controlling interests 187 01
Temporarily restricted net assets 1,235 1,191
Permmanently restricted net assets 1,132 1,067

Total net assets 533 5,019

Total liabilities and net assets § 7,606 S 7,471

Total net assets inehide Vanderbil's endowment velied at $3,635
wiltion as of Fune 30, 2013, Net assets associated with cap¥alinfra-
structure totakd $690 million, which represents the university’s
property, plnt, and equipment, net of accwnulated depreciation and
capitatrelited debt. Other net assets, which totaked $1,014 miltion
as of fune 20, 2013, inc bide current assets and current labilities, net
of mark-to-market adjustiments on intersst rate exchange agree-
ments, and 112t assets related to noncontrolling terests.

Vanderbil's assets, totaling $7,606 million as of hms 30, 2013,
refket 2 1.8% increase fiom the prior year. This increase primarily
i attribitable to increases ;the endowinent.

Total liabilities decreased by $185 million to $2,267 million as of
Fune 30, 2013, This decrease s attributabk hrgely to a decrease in
the mark-to-market liabikity associnted with the universily’s interest
rate exchange agreements,

‘The swnmary of financial position shown on this page summarizes
several asset and Iabiliy lies from the consolidated statements of
financial position. The summary on this page alko segregates the
wiversity’s cash and dnvestments into: (a) working capital, which
consts of operating accounts and proceeds flom taxable liquidiy
borrowiigs, and (b) endowment and other cash and investments.
The summary segregates debt between taxable debt designated for
Tquiddy enhancement and capitatrelated debt.




Cash and Liquidity

Vanderbilt’s workig capital cash and investments, which inclnde
ighly ligudd operating aceounts, amouats posted as collateral {pri-
marnily rehited to interest rate exchange agreements), and amownts
invested in the long-term dnvestment pool abngside the endow-
ment, totakd $1,120 million as of Tune 30, 2013,

Operating assets eontinue to be invested in a conservative, diversi-
fied manner to ensure adequate Iqudity vnder modeled stress sce-
narios, During the past year Vanderbil’s endowiment ako provided
increased Hquidity support, especially monthly liquidity, while still
maintaining a long-term fnvestment horizon. As of lune 30, 2013,
$1,865 million of operating and endowment assets were availble
within 30 days, inchiding $726 millon availible on a same-day
basis. Based largely on this very strong Hquidity positin, Vander-
bik maintains the highest short-term ratings fiom the major eredit
ratiip agenciss.

To provide supplemental liquidity support, Vanderbilt maintads an
agreement with one bank fo provide a general operating line of
eredit with a max¥mun available commitment totaling $100 mil-
lion, In addition, Vanderbilt carries $400 million of revolving eredit
faclliies with two additional banks to provide dedicated selff
Hquitiy support for the debt porifdlb; one of these lines, totaling
$200 million, ncludes a generaluse provision.

Statements of Activities

Bebt

Vanderbil’s debt portfolio ichides fixed-rate debt, variabls-rate
debt, and commerchl paper, along with interest rate exchange
agreements that are wsed for hedging mferest rate exposure within
the university’s debt portfolio,

In accordance wih our strategic capital plan, Vanderbilt did not
Beue incremental debt during fiscal 2013, Scheduled principal
payments on long-term debt reduced total outstanding debt by $40
miilion to a baknee of $1,341 millon as of une 30, 2013, This
amount consited of $1,091 million of capifal project-related debt
and $250 million of taxabk debt for liquidity support,

Dhwring fscal 2013, Vanderbilt refinanced $120 million of weekly-
vemarketed variable-rate debt wih fixed.rate bonds having a ma-.
nrity of 25 years, which climinated weeky remarketing risk. Ako,
to firther reduce remarketing risk, Vanderbilt refinanced 350 mil-
lion of tax-exempt commercial paper with fived-rate notes having a
matir 2y of seven years.

Vanderbilt’s total operating and nonoperatiig activiy resulted ma
$320 millon increase in net assets ; fiscal 2013, which follows a
$71 million decrease in fiscal2012.

Summary of Statements of Activities
all net asset categovies, in millions

2013 2012

CONSOLIDATED REVENUES
Tuition and educationalfees, nat

of finane alaid S 266 S 250
Govermment grants and contracts

and F&A costs recovery 520 545
Private grants and contracts 62 55
Contributions 111 83
Endowment distrbutions £51 148
Investment income 22 19
Health care services 2,394 2,462
Room, board, and other auxiliary

services, net of financilaid £3 110
Orther sowrces 53 39

Total consolidated revemies 3,692 3,711
CONSOLIDATED EXPENSES
Instruction, academic support, and

student services 689 658
Research 447 435
Heatth care services 1326 2,221
Publis service 34 46
Institutional support 52 38
Room, board, and other auxiliary servizes 121 109

Total consolidated expenses 3,669 3,507

OTHER CHANGES INNET ASSETS
Changes inappreciation of endownent,

net of distr butfons 169 (95)
Gains (bsses) on interest rate exchange

agreements 109 {181)
(Decrease) mcrease innetassets related to

noncontrolling interests (14) 2
Other nonoperating activity 13 3]

Total other changes in net assets 297 {273)

s 320 s ()

Tucrease (decrease) in nef assets

Dur g fiseal 2013, the increase 1 total net assets primarily resulted
from strong endowment investment returns and mark-to-market
gais on terest rate exchange agreements. In comparison, the de-
crease i fiscal 2012 primarily resulted fiom strong net operating
activiy offiet by mark-to-market losses on mferest rate exchange
agreements and an excess of endowment distributiens over invest:
ment refurmn,

Consolidated revenues and expenses, as presented on this page,
inelnde revenues and other support it allnet asset categorizs. Oper-
ating activity specifiz to twestricted net assets & discussed i the
unrestrivted operating activity section. In addition to unrestricted
operating activity, conso lidated revenuss inchude activity in tempo-
rarily restricted and permanently restricted net assets.

Consolidated Revenues

Consolidated revenues decreased $19 million or 0.5% to $3,692
mittion in fiscal 2013, as compared to $3,711 million in fiscal 2012,
Thi decrease was driven primarily by a $68 million, or 2.8%, de-
crease in health care services revenue lrgely due to a change in
bahnce sheet estinate ofthe net realizable value of patient receiva-




bles during fiscal 2013, Vanderbilt’s heakh care senvices are dis-
cussed further ia subsequent section.

Vanderbik remais femls committed to student access and afforda-
bilky. To facilitate this, the wiiversity provides significant financial
aid to students and their fimilies, In fiscal 2013, Vanderbilt provid-
ed $239 million in aid support to its students for tuition and room
and board, as shown in the tabk below.,

Tuition, Room and Board (R&B) and Financial Aid
fiscal 2013, in millions

Guoss tuitien

Nef tuition

and fees and fees
and R&B Financial aid’ and R&B
Undergeaduate
6.796 students) 5 358 S 153 § 203
Graduate and
Professional
{5,914 students) 183 86 97
TFotal $ 51 $ 239 S a2

U The financh! aid aumber above exchides Pell Grants of $4 mitton. Pell Grants are
considered agency fonds and are exclsdad fiom the GAAP financ alstatements.

Over the past decade, Vanderbik has more than dovbkd #s levelof

support for wndergraduate aid, as shown in the graph below.,

Undergraduate Financial Aid
fiscal 2004 - 2013, S million
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For wndergraduates, aid as a percentage of gross tuition, room and
board, and educational fees in fiseal 2013 was 43%. That aid is
fimded i part by endowments, gifls and extemal agencies, Critical
to this support is the wniversity’s OV fundraising initiative began in
fiscal 2009 to support undergraduate financhlaid. As of fune 30,
2013, that initiative had raised $154 million.

Contrbutions revenue wihi the consolidated fancinl statements
is cakulated based on Generally Accepted Accounting Principles
(GAAP). Thi is a different basis for measurement than reported
using guide fines established by the Cowncil for Advancement and
Support of Education (CASE). CASE guidelies represent the de-
velopment reporting standard for colleges and wnhersiies and -
cus on phibnthrop i distributions of private resources to benefit the
- public,

On a GAAP-bas#, in fiscal 2013, Vanderbik recorded $116 million
i contributions revenue, ichding plkdges, a 34% increase over the
$85 million in fiscal 2012, A reconciliation of the CASE and GAAP
totak 15 provided below:

GAAD to CASE Reconciliation
iit millions

2013
Totalconsotidated GAAP contributions s lis
Grants and similar agreements meeting CASE guidelies
(gifis per CASE standards) 29
Decrease in net contrbutions receivable (flscat2012 to 2013) 2
CASE reported gifts (cash basis) s 147

Consolidated Expenses

Consolidated expenses increased 4.6% to $3,669 million in fiscal
2013, as compared to $3,507 million in fiscal 2012, This increase
was driven primarily by a 4,7% increase i health care services
expemses, and a 4.7% increase in total instruction, academic sup-
port, and student services expenses,

Other Changes in Net Assets

Otlier changes in net assets inchded changes in appreciation of
endowment, net of dktributions, totaling $169 million in fiscal 2013
and negative $95 million in fiscal 2012, The fiscal 2013 change in
apprecitibn for the endowment resuked Fom a 9.3% investment
rettwn offiet by 4.3% of the endowment utilized for distrintions,

In fiscal 2013, Vanderbilt incurred net vnrealized gains totaling
$109 million on interest rate exchange agrecments. These gains are
based on mark-to-market valuations of the university’s portfolio of
Iterest rate exchange agreements, especially fixed-payor exchange
contracts. Adjustments to annual interest expense occur for net cash
settkments as Vanderbilt pays an average of 3.8% on its fixed-
payor contracts and receives amows based on a percentage of 1-
month LIBOR rates. The unreatized mark-to-market vakatin on
these agreements was driven primarily by long-tenn LIBOR rates.
During the past year, the 30-year LIBOR rate increased to 3.5% as
of hune 30, 2013—up from 2.5% as of Aune 30, 2012—which re-
suked in a decrease to the ik valee of the lhability for the agree-
ments,

Net assets related to noncontroihg interests decreased $14 million
due to the change in appreciation albeabl: to noncontrolling inter-
ests combined with a planned write.down of assets rehted to the
contractualobligations set forth in the partnership agreement, Final-
¥, net other nonoperating activity totakd $33 million in fiscal 2013
compared to negative $1 million in fiscal 2012, This horease pri-
mariks was the result of net gains on working capital invested
abngside the endowment and other nonoperating investments.




Summary of Changes in Net Assets
in millions

2013 2012

Reveunes and expenses:
Unrestricted pperating revenues $ 3,625 $ 3,665
Unrestricted operating expenses (3,669) 3,507
Urnrestrizted operating actvity 44 158
Contribution activity i temporarily restricted

and permuanently restricted net assets 59 36
Investment income and endowment

distributions in tenporarily restrited

and permanently restricted net assets 8 10
Orher changes in net assers:
Change in appreciation of endowment,

net of distrbutions 169 95
(Gains) losses on interest rate exchange

agreements 109 (181)
(Decrease) increase in netassets related to non-

controlling erests {14) 2
Other nonoperathg activity 33 [4);

Increase {decrease) in net assets 5 3 5 (M)

Ending balance of net assets § 5339 $ 5019

Unrestyicted Operating A ctivity

The change in wrestricted net assets fom operating activity is the
measure of the university’s operating results. Thi unrestricted
operating activity totaled negative $44 millibn in fiscal 2013 and
$158 million i fiscal 2012,

Opevating Revenues
Unrestricted operating revenues totakd $3,625 million in fiscal
2013, reflcting a 1.1% decrease ffom the prior year,

Operating Revenues by Source
unrestricted net assets, in millions

As shown It the table below, the hrgest portion of the $440 million
in totaldireet grant and contract revenue for fical 2013 was finded
by the Department of Health and Human Services. Other external
sources include state and local governments, Industry, foundations,
and private sources,

Grants and Contracts Revenues by Funding Source
in millions

2013 2012
Tuition and educationalfees, net
of financ il aid S 266 S 250
Government grants and coniracts 378 397
Privats grants and contracts 62 k3]
F&A costs recovery 142 148
Contrdbutions, inchuding net assets
released fomrestitions 52 47
Endowment distributions 145 137
Envestiment income 20 Pl
Health core services 2394 2,462
Room, board, and other anciliary
services, net of financhlaid 113 110
Other sources 53 39
Total operating revenues $ 1,625 § 3,663

2013 Yo
Dept. of Health and Hunan Services S 294 67%
Dept. of Defense 28 6%
Associations and foundations 26 6%
Corporations 25 6%
Dept. of Education n 5%
National Sciznce Foundation 17 4%
Other govermrent and private agenciss 28 6%
Total sponsered vesearch and
preject awards § 440 104%

Due hrgely to governmentalbudgetary constraints, government and
private grants and contracts revenue, predominantly for research
activities, and faedlitis and administrative (F&A) costs recovery
declined 2.7% fiom fiscal 2012 to 2013 (fiom $452 milton to $440
million), Wihin the pool of ditect grant revenues, whik govem.
ment grants and contracts declined by 4.8% from fiseal 2012 to
2013 (ffom $397 millbn to $378 million), private grants and con
tracts diect revenues increased 12.7% over the same tine period
{(fram $55 millbn to $62 million),

Sponsored research and project awards {awards represent rescarch
finding conunitments that have not yet been expended by Vander:
bil), which include multipk-year gravts and confracts fom gov-
emment sowrces, foundations, associations, and corporations, to-
takd $616 million n fscal2013 and $571 milbonin fsecal2012.

Sponsored Research and Project Awards
in millions

2013 2012

Govermment awards S 477 $ 436

Non-government awards 139 115
Total sponsored research and

project awards 8 616 s 571

Federal and state awards accounted for approximately 77% of the
total sponsored flmding during fiscal 2013 and increased to $477
million, or 5%, it fiscal 2013 fom $456 million i fieal 2012,
Non-federal awards increased to $139 million, or 21%, in fiscal
2013 from $115 milion i fiscal 2012. The growih in Rderal




awards is paticularly impressive given the presswes on federal
finding, whik growth i non-federal awards signals Vanderbilt's
contiwed success in diversifying its research award pipeline,

Operating Expenses
Operating expenses totaled 33,669 miltion in fiseal 2013, reflecting
a 4.6% increase fiom the prior year.

Operating Expenses by Function
unrestricted net assets, i millions

2013 2012

Instruction, academic support. and
student services S 689 S 658
Research 447 435
Health care services 2,326 2,221
Public service 34 46
Instintbnal support 52 38
Room, board, and other auxiliary services 121 109
Total operating expenses $ 3,669 $ 3,507

Healih Care

Expenses for mstruetion, academic support, and student services
mereased $31 million, or 4.7%, in fiscal 2013, These expenses sub-
stantially exceed net tuition revenues, which are noted in the operat-
ing revemws by sowce table. Vanderbit, like other major private
research universities, relies upon contributions, endowment support,
and other alternative sowrces of revenue—in addition to tudtion—to
mezt its educational mission objectives. Research expenses in-
creased $12 million, or 2.8%, to $447 million i fiscal 2013 ffom
$435 million m fiscal 2012.

Hea¥h care services expenses fncreased $105 million, or 4.7%, to
$2,326 million # fieal 2013 fom $2.221 million in fieal 2012,
Ths increase & attributable brgelk to an overallincrzase in patient
volunes, Inpatient vohunes increased 7.7% and outpationt volmes
twreased 6.2% from fiscal2012 to fiseal 2013, Vanderbik's health
care services are diseussed firther n the next section,

Health care is an industry that is poised to change dramatically in
years to come with the fallimplamentation ofthe 2010 Patient Pro-
tection and Affordabk Care Act, occurring m 2014, Collaboration
with other health care providers is a key success factor in this new
envionment. In fiscal 2013, Vanderbilt Undiversity Medical Center
(VUMC) Iuuched the Vanderbit Health Afiilated Network
{VHAN), one of the largest clinically integrated networks of doc-
tors, regional health systems, and other health care providers in
Tennessee and strrounding states, [nthe VHAN elinkally integrat-
ed network, academic medical centers, community hospitals, physi-
cians, insurers, and ancilly health service providers remain inde-
pendent but affiliated to actively collaborate to provide patients
with highquality, eficiently coordinated, and cost—effective
heath care services, As a result of these affiliations, VUMC and ifs
affikated medical centers have created a new health plan of clini-
cians and hospitals which willallow employces the opportunity to
receive health care at any of the participating affiliated medical
centers or through participating providers in the communiy. During
fiscal201 3, VHAN was offéred as an alernative heakh plan admin-
istered by Aetma to Vanderbik employees. As of hune 30, 2013, the
VHAN participating affiliates inchaded 14 hospitals and 3,000 pro-
viders.

In fiseal 2013, the Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services
(CMS) awarded VUMC a three-year $18.8 million grant to improve
chironi: diease management for patients with high blood pressure,
heart filure, and dizbetes, This Health Care Innovation Award is
one ofthe largest federal researeh grants awarded to VUMC inves-
tigators, VUMC is joined in fhis grant by several of the VHAN
affiliated hospitals.

Like many of its peers, ¥ anderbilt is abo responding to the presswre
of flat revenue streams by fcusing on efficiency in patient care
processes to reduce costs and improve outeontes, Strateghs inchxde
developing fixdle staffing models to more efficiently staff'to de-
mand, standardizing clinical operations to reduce costs and improve
quality, supp ¥y chain standardization, and reductions in adminisra-
tive overhead costs.

VUMC finkhed fiscal 2013 in the U.S. News & World Report an-
nual ranking of America’s Best Hospitals with 11 ranked specialties

out of a possible 16 categories. Specialty programs ranking among
the top 50 m their respective felds: cancer; cardiobgy and heart
surgery; ear, niose, and throat; gastroenterology; geriatrics; gynecol:
ogy; nephrology; newolbgy and newrosurgery; orthopedics; pulmo-
nobgy; and wrology. Vanderbilt was among only 3% 014,806 facil:
#is analyzed for this year's rankings to be named in at kast one
specialy, In addition, the Monros Carell Fr. Children's Hospital at
Vanderbik was incloded among the matbn’s leaders i pediatric
heakh care @1 U5, News & World Report magarine’s Best Chil-
dren’s Hospital rankings. The hospal achieved rankings in nie out
of 10 speciakies: cancer; cardiology and heart swwgery; dinbetes and
endocrine bgy; gastroenterology; neonatobgy; newology and new
rosurgery; orthopedics; pulnonobgy; and wology.

VUMC has been granted MagnetE- status by the American Nurses
Credentialing Center’s Magnet Recognition Program®, The Magret
Recognition Program® recognizes organizations for quality patient
care, nursing excellence and innovations in professional musing
practive, Tn addition, Vanderbilt University Hospital received an
“A” for #s Hospital Safety Score fiom the Leapfrog Group, a coali-
tion of public and private purchasers of employee health coverage
aiming to promote health care safety, qualiy, and affordabitity. The
Leapfiog Group swveyed about 2,500 hospitals, awarding them
scores of A, B, C, D, orF.

Successful vokune growth 1 recent years led to peaking occupancy
rates and capaciy constraints in Vanderbilt's hospitak. Vanderbilt's
overall hospialocoupancy rates were 83.3% in fscal 2013, an an-
tivpated slight decrease fiom 83.6% in fiscal 2012, due to the addi-
tion of 34 licensed beds during fiscal2013,

Vanderbik compkted consiruction of the 10® floor of the Critical
Care Tower in November 2012 resultiig in the addition of 34 beds,
The 5th fhor of the Critical Care Tower & currently under construe-
tbnas a procedural area for Vanderbilt Heart Institute, The rebcea-
ton of services to the Critical Care Tower will enable the addition
of 12 beds in adjacent areas by the end of calendar 2013, The bed
expansbns are necessary to manage occupancy approaching the
839 range and te avoid overcrowding and bng wai times for pa-




tients in the emergency room, recovery rooms, and other procedural
staging arcas.
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Inpatiznt hospital surgical operations iereased 1.0% i fiscal year
2013 compared to the prior year whil surgeris for outpatients
increased 4.2%, In the owpatint clinks, ambubtory viits in-
creased 6.2% to a total 1,833,337 in fiscal 2013 as Vanderbilt con-
tinued its expansion of heath care services offered outside the med-
jeal center's main campus. Approximately 45% of oulpatient visits
accurred at offcampis bcations. Growth in ambulatory visits akso
accurred as the resuk of physician practice expansions in obstetrics
and gynecology and pediatrics in nearby Willamson and Wikon
coumties,

The average length of stay for patients m Vanderbilt's hospitals
remained consistently bw at 5.3 days in fiscal 2013, the same
length of'stay as in fiscal 2012,

The medical center’s overall case mix Idex (CMI) iereased to
1.93 i fiscal 2013 fom 1.90 & fkcal 2012, duc to significant
growth in surgical CMI, primarily within Vanderbilt Heart Institute.
The swgicalease mix index was 3.46 in fiscal 2013 as compared to
3.28 m fiscal 2012,

The folbwing tabk shows payor mix percentages based on gross
patint revenues for Vanderbil's hospitals and efinies in fiscal 2013

income criteria based on federal poverty ling guidelines. These
services are accounted for as charity cave and are not reported as
revenue, Charity care serviees, at established charges, represent
5.3% of total patiant services revenue in fiscal 2013 and 2012, re-
specitvely.

The totalcost of wcompensated care (comprising charity cars and
bad debt) was $137.8 million and $134.3 milton for fiscal 2013 and
2012, respectively. OF the total uncompensated care, charity care
represented 83.3% and 84.8% in fiscal 2013 and 2012, respectively.

Charity Cave and Bad Debt Costs
i millions

2013 2012

Unreimbursed charity care cost S 117,614 § 113,833

Urgefmbursed bad debtcost 20,212 20429

Total uncomypensated care § 137826 $ 134,262
Charity care as % of total )

wnconpensated carve 83.3% 84.8%

In addition to uncompensated care, the medical center provides a
nuamber of other services to benefit the economically disadvantaged
for which little or no payment & received. These services inchude
public health education and training for new health professionals
and services to patients with speeialneeds. Vanderbilt ako provides
other substantiil community benefits in the fonn of clindcal and
hboratory research support. This activity primarily is conducted by
the schools ef medicine and nursing and inchudes diect and indirect
costs of research fimded by other organizations, government enti-
tizs, and internal imd g sowwess.

A summary of costs for the commmunity benefit activiiss, which are
regubrly reported in Vanderbit’s Form 990 filng (Retwn of Or-
ganization Fxempt fiom Income Taxes), is provided in the follow-
ing table,

Charity Care Assistance, Commmunity Benefits, and Other
Unvecovered Costs
in millions

. . . . . 2013 2012
and fiscal 2008 (five years prior). The mcrease in Medicare patients - - -
. . . . . . . Charity carve and conmunity benefits
is due to aging population demographics and is comsistent with Unreimbursed chas fry care cost §  117.614 § 113433
Medicare growth of other hosp#al systems in MiddEk Tennessee. Resident and Allied Heakth education 29,130 82,552
The patient increase in Tentware/Medicaid & driven by high growth Unreibursed cost of TennCare/
in obstetrics and pedhtrd services, which have a higher Medicald 60.902 47,213
dieas , i t] oo Tt Other conumnity health programs 5,678 5,386
Tenncare/Mediaid payor mix than other service hnes. Behavioral health hospital secvices ) 206
CHnizaland laboratory research support 496,201 515,018
Payor Mix Totalcosts of charity care and
Vanderbilt hospitals and elinics (% of gross patient reveiiies) comumrity benefits 769,525 764,808
1913 3008 on dcosts wsina TRS
T, n oy e unrecovered Costs UsINg
Comfmrc:.ah\ilmag:’d Ca::re 45.5% ;;‘g% Form 890 Schedule H guidelines but
Medaéare)}t{iar?%e?dk Hedicare F‘;gi 18 '3 not includable as commumity benefits
TemCareMediza - - Unrefrbirsed cost of Medicare 50,030 51,662
Uninsured (s i pay) 6.3 6.3 Unrefnbursed bad debt costs 20212 26,429
Tots] payor nmix 100.0% 100.0% Unreimbirsed cost of IRICARE 1,792 2,701
Totalother unrecovered costs 74,034 83,792
Vanderbik rematns committed to providing high quality health care Total cost of charity care,
v t key community needs, mcluding providing sub- conununity benefits, and
services that mect key community needs. ep = other unrecovered costs $  843,53¢ $ 848,600

stantial chartty care for members of the community who otherwise
woul not be able to secure needed services.

VUMC maintains a charity care policy which sets forth the criteria
for healh care services that are provided wihout expectation of
payment, or at a reduced payinent rate to patients who meet certain
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In the preceding tablk, clirical and kboratory expense of $496 mil-
Jon inchudes sponsored research, primarily fiom the Natinallnsti-
tutes of Heakh (NIH), as well as other foderal and non-federal
agencies, for the support of basik and clinkalresearch. In addition,




institutional finds are inchided to provide support for wnfinded
research such as bridge flnds for faculy between grant periods, and

Endowment

for new ideas or new science that may receive fimding in fuhare
years,

For fiscal 2013, Vanderbilt’s endowment portfolio returned 9.3%,
The endowment ended fiscal 2013 with a $3,635 million totalmar-
ket vals compared to $3.360 millien in fiscal 2012, The difference
between the investment refiwn and change in absolite value of the
endowment reflects the net impact of new endowment gifls, addi-
tions to institutional endowments (quasi-endowments), investment
returns, costs for managing the endowment, and the distribution of
endowment fizds to support university operations, Dwing fiscal
2013, the wiversity added $117 million to the endowment portfolio
through new gifts and additions to nstiutbnalendowments (quasi-
endowinents). Endowment distributions totaled $151 million in
fiscal 2013, compared to $148 million in fiscal 2012, These distri-
butions were used to support the umiversity’s education, research,
and public service missions.

The last 12 months saw a continuation of the equity bull market that
began in March 2009 on the back of unprecedented accommodative
monetary policies by central banks across the world, particularly the
U.S. Pederal Reserve. Gbbalequity maskats rallied 17%, with the
Unied States, Japan, and Europe exchuding UK cach posting re-
furns greater than 20% and sienifeantly outperforming the so-
called BRICs (Brazil, Russh, India, and China) which collectively
posted another hckhster year, Treasuries siruggled with the bong
end of the yield cwve declinmg almost -9% while gold and silver
both lost thet shine, declining —27% and ~36%, respectively.

Vanderbilt's endowment benefited Fom the market rally as most
asset classes posted positive returns, As we bok to the fiulure, we
beleve there are muktiple headwinds still ahead—U.5. wemploy-
ment remains stubborndy high, the fiscal erisis in Europe still boonis
large, emerging markets contiue to face increased inflationary
pressures and s iggish growth, and there does not seeim to be an end
in sight to the multiple geopolticalerises confrenting the world, In
additin, conversations about when the U.S. Federal Reserve will

Conclusion

end #s asset buying program eontinue to drive recent market vola
titéy. That said, we belicve these chalbnges will present great op-
portunitizs as we lay the foundation for a resilient portfolio by fo-
cusiig ot strong risk management and partnering with best-In-class
frvestment managers across the globe.

Endowment Market Value and Aunual Distributions
i millions

Market Vahwe Distrbutions
U000 4 st Mket Ve 7 3200
wmsmsen A nsua] Diste inftion s £
$3,000 nmal Ditcbitins; ot 5150
52,000 4 -1 s100
$1,000 £ - $50
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Endowment Asset Allocation
June 2013 (% of porifolio)
Actual Target
Glcbalequities 28.1% 35.0%
Absolute rehen 228 250
Fixed ncome 5.1 10.0
Cash and cash eqiivalents 0.4 .
Total marketable 56.4 70.0
Private markets 283 150
Real estate 6.7 1.5
Nanwralresources 8.6 7.5
Total nonmarketalle 43.6 30.0
Total enclowment 106.0% 100.0%

Although the economy still holds its challenges for the fiture, espe-
cially related to uncertainty swrounding government fimding and
healh care reform, we continue to stay focused on operating effic.
tivelr and effickentl to protect Vanderbilt’s financial health and
provide resourees to areas of high importance to continue to fulfill
our mission and serve the commuumnity.

1t

Veanderbil ended fiscal 2013 in a strong financial position with $5.3
billion in net assets. Thi is a strong platforn to build upon to sus-
tak owr exceliance, Vanderbilt's audited financial statements, fi-
nanchlratbs, and other key fmanchlmetris are inchnded in the
pages that folbw,




Financial Ratios

Expendable Net Assets to Debt
Expendable Net Assets / Project Dedt and Lease Conpnitments

2009 2014 2011 2012 2013

1.9« 21x 23x 2.4x 2.7x

Expendable net assets to debt measwres the wniversity’s kverage,
Debt used for cakeuhting this ratio conskts of all project-related
debt, the net present valwe of lease commitients, and debt guaran-
tees.

Vanderbil's expendabk net assets to debt increased in fiseal 2013
as the result of a net inerease in endowment market vahw, a de-
crease m inferest rate exchange agreements portfolio habiley, and a
declne in outstanding debt, tempered by a net operating loss, The
improvement in fiscal 2012 was the result of positive operating
resulks and a decline m owtstanding debt, tempered by a net de-
crease in endowment market value and an increase in interest rate
exchange agreements portfdlic lability. Vanderbilt aims to main-
tam expendable net assels to debt ofat kast 2.0

Debt Service Coverage Ratic

Unrestricted Operating Results before Interest and Depreciation /
Novmalized Armual Debt Service

2009 1019 2011 2012 2013

3 3.6x +.0x 4.Ix 2.ix

‘The debt service eoverage ratio measures the universiy’s ability to
pay anmal debt service obligations from cwwrent year operating
activitizs. In this context, annual debt service is normalized to eal-
culate Jong-term (25 years), kvel principal and interest payments
that would be required based on the portfolio’s then-prevailing
weighted average interest mtes hiclwsive of the effects of interest
rate exchange agreements. The scope for this ratio s
all outstanding debt, except for taxable commercial paper used for
short-term ligquidity support prior te fiscal 2012.

Vanderbil’s debt service coverage rato decreased in fiscal 2013 as
the result of a decrease in operating results tempered by a slight
decrease in nonmalized debt service. Alhough the debt portfolio’s
effective interest rate, which includes the impact of terest rate
exchange agreements, increased slightly in fical 2013, average
outstanding debt decreased in fiseal 2013 resulting in a favorable
impact on nomnalized annual debt service, The improvement in
fiseal 2012 was primarily the resuk of positive operating resuls.
Vanderbik ains to mamtain a debt service coverage ratd of'at last
20,

Debt Service Burden
Abrmatized Annual Debi Service / Unres tricted Operatbig Expenses

2002 2010 2011 2012 2013

2.7% 33% 2.9% 2.8% 2.6%

The debt service burden measures the percent of the annual operat-
ing budget devoted to servicing outstanding debt.

Vanderbilt's debt service burden decreased in fiscal 2013 and 2012
pranarily due to an increase in operating expenses. Normalized debt
service decreased slightly in fiscal 2013, Vanderbilt azns to main.
taina debt service burden below 5.0%.
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Operating Cash Flow Margin
Unrestricted Operating Results befove Interest and Deprec iation /
Lswrestricted Operating Revenues

2008 2016 2011 2012 013

2.3% 11.4% 11.1% 10.9% 5.5%

The operating eash flow margin measures the cash flow generated
from cach dollar of operating revenue. The resulting net cash flows
may occir in the current or fuhwe years depending on changes in
receivabks and payabbs.

In fiscal 2013, Vanderbik's wrestricted operating results before
mterest and depreciation decreased 50.0% to $199 million from
$398 milkion # fiscal 2012, Fiseal 2013 unrestricted operatig rev-
enues, af $3,625 million, represent a 1.1% decrease fom $3,663
i Hion in fscal2012,

Capital Intensiveness Ratio
Acquisitions of Property, Plani, and Equipment /
Unvestricled Qpevaling Revenues

2009 2010 011 2012 2013

§.5% 5.2% 3.6% 39% 62%

The capital intensiveness ratio measures the wniversity’s anmual
vestments in property, plant, and equipment as a percentage ofthe
wniversiy’s annual operating revenes,

Vanderbik's capital intensiveness ratib increased i fical 2013 as
spend ing on major capital projects increased i accordance with the
universiy’s capital plan,

Average Age of Plant
Accuonulated Depreciation / Depreciation Expense
2009 2010 2011 2012 2013
9.5 y15 10.0 y¥s 10.2 yrs EL23rs 118 y1s

The average age of plant metrk provides a sense of the age of the
university’s facilities, A low average age of plant indicates that an
mstiiution has made significant recent investments inits phat.

Dwing fiscal 2013, Vanderbilt's spending on major capital projects
creased I accordance with the wniversity’s capitalphn; however,
construction was still in progress for the Critical Care Tower Phase
2, Colkge Halls at Kissam, and A lwni Hall renovation as of e
30, 2013,
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Independent Auditor’s Repoit
Board of Trust
Vanderbilt University

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Vanderbilt University (the “University”),
which conmprise the consolidated statenent of fimancial position as of June 30, 2013 and Jume 30, 2012, ard the
related consolidated statements of activitizs and changes innet assets and cash flows for the years then ended.

Management’s Responsiblity for the Consolidated Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of Amwerica; this inchides the design,
inplementation, and mmintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of consolidated
financial statenents that are free fiom material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,

Auditor’s Respansibilliy

Owr responsibility is to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statenents based on owr audis. We
conducted owr audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of Anerica,
Those standards require that we pln and perform the audit to obtain reasonable asswrance about whether the
consolidated financial statenents ave fee frommaterial iisstaterrent.

An audit involves performing procedwes to obtain audit evidence about the anvunts and dischsures in the
consolidated financial statements. The procedues selected depend on owr judgment, inchuding the assessment of the
risks of material misstatemrent of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, In making
those risk assessments, we consider infernal confrol relevant to the University’s preparation and fair presentation of
the comsolidated financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circunstances,
but not for the pupose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the University’s internal control
Accordingly, we express no such opinion An audit also inches evaluating the appropriateness of accounting,
policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by nnnagement, as well as evaluating
the overall presentation of the consolidated finarcial statenents. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinjon.

Oplnion
In our opinion, the consolidated financial statemerts refered to above presert fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of Vanderbilt University at June 30, 2013 and June 30, 2012, and the changes in net assets and its

cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States
of America,

Priconralintovacorpere £8P

October 18, 2013

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, PricewaterhouseCoopers Center, 300 Madison Avenue, New York, NY 10017
T: (646) 4713000, F. (§13) 236 6000, www .pwe.com/us
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Vanderbilt University

Consolidated Statements of Financial Position
As of June 30, 2013 and 2012 (in thonsands)

2013 2012
ASEETS
Cash and cash equivalents 845,472 912,419
Accounts receivable, net 413,172 518,566
Prepaid expenses and other assets 85,675 82,167
Contrbutions receivabk, net 70,302 72,334
Student Ioans and other notes receivable, net 43,582 45,409
Investments 4,141,408 3,872,014
Investments allocablz to noncontolling nterests 186,901 201,386
Property, plant, and equipment, net 1,781,293 §,727.611
Interests in tnusts held by others 38,091 39,257
Tofal assets 7,605,895 7,471,163
UABILITES
Accounts payablke and accrued Habiliies 226,643 228,422
Acerued comrpensation and withboldings 235,169 245,859
Deferred revenue 93,029 118,826
Actuariai Hability for sef-insurance 107,514 105,543
Actarial Hability for split-interest agreements 33,968 34,171
Government advances for student bans 22,052 22,113
Conmercial paper 214,011 264,075
Long-term debt and capialkeases 1,127,458 1,117,029
Fak valie of interest rate exchange agreements, net 206,733 313,577
Total liabilities 1,266,577 2,451,615
NET ASSETS
Unrestristed net assets controlled by Vanderbilt 2,784,933 2,550 802
Unrastricted net assets refated to noncontroliing interests 186,901 201386
Totalunrestricted net assets 1971834 2,761,188
Temporarily restricted net assets 1,235,066 1,191,216
Permanently restrizted net assets 1,132,419 1,067,144
Total uet assets 5,339,319 5,019,548
Total liabilities and net assets 7,605,896 7,471,163

The accompanying notes are an iniegral pari of the consolidated forancial statenrents.
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Vanderbilt University

Consolidated Statement of Activities
Year Ended June 20, 2013 (in thousands)

2013
Temporazily Peymanently
Unrestricted Restricted Restricted Total
FEVENUES AND OTHER SUPFORT
Tuition and educational fees, net S 265,962 s - S - $ 265,962
Grants and contracts:
Government sponsors 377,839 . - 377,839
Private sponsars 61,714 - - 61,714
Facilities and administrative costs recovery 142,609 - - 142,609
Totalgrants and contracts 582,162 . - 582,162
Contrbutions 37,940 12,388 60,340 110,668
Endowment distrbutions 144,801 4,476 1,279 150,536
Investment income 19,673 854 1,337 21,566
Health care services 2,394,341 - - 2,394,341
Room, board, and other auxiliary services, net 112,929 - . 112,929
Other sowrces 53,285 - - 53,185
Net assets released Fomrestrictions 14,322 (14,322) - -
Total vevenues and other suppeat 3,625,417 3,396 62,956 3,691,764
BPENSES
Instruction 489,458 - - 489,458
Rasearch £47,251 - - 447,251
Heahh care services 2,326,339 - - 2,326,339
Public service 34,039 - - 34,039
Academic support 158,581 - - 153,581
Student services 10,921 - - 40,921
Instzutional support 51,518 - - 51,518
Room, board, and other auxiliary services 120,993 - - 120,993
Total expenses 3,669,100 - - 3,669,100
Change in unrestiicted net assets from operating activity (43,683)
OTHER CHANGESIN NET ASSETS
Change i appreciation of endowment, net of distrbutions 73,019 96,231 . 169,250
Change h apprec iation of self- insurance assets 5,232 - - 5,232
Change i appreciation of other nvestments 23,149 - . 23,149
Change i appreciation of interest rate exchange agreements 108,844 - - 108,844
Contributions for plant 3,757 1,779 - 5536
Netassets released fromrestrictions for plant 49,262 (49,262 - -
Donor designation changes 5,975 (8.299) 2319 -
Other {£24) - . (424)
Total other changes in net assets 268,814 40,454 2,319 311,387
Increase in net assefs controlled by Vanderbilt 225,131 43,850 63,273 334,256
Decrease in net assets related to nonconfrolling interests (14,485 - - {14,4853)
Total increase innet assets $ 210,646 $ 43,850 3 65,275 S 318,771
Net assefs, June 36,2012 § 2,761,188 § 1,191,216 5 1,067,144 $ 5,019,548
Net assets, June 30,2013 § 1,071,834 § 1,235,066 $ 1,132,419 $ 5,339,319

The accompanying notes are an integral pavt of the consolidated formic il statenents.
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Vanderbilt University
Consolidated Statement of Activities

Year Ended June 30, 2012 (in thousands}

2012
Temporarily Permanently
Unrestricted Restricted Restricted Total
FEVENUES AND OTHER SURFORT
Tuition and educationalfees, net § 250,137 S . $ - S 250,137
Grants and contracts:
Govermment sponsors 397,555 - - 391,555
Private sponscrs 54,768 - - 54,768
Facilitizs and admhistrative costs recovery 147,806 - - 147,806
Totalgrants and contracts 600,129 - . 600,129
Conftrbutions 25,861 28,430 28,580 82,871
Endowment distrbutions 136,883 8,565 2,447 147,895
Investment income (bss) 19,831 276 {96%9) 19,138
Health care services 2,461,830 - - 2,461,830
Room, board, and other auxiliary services, net 108,733 - - 109,733
Other sowrces 39,068 - - 39,068
Netassets rekeased fomrestrictions 21,459 (21,439 - -
Total revenues aud other suppoit 3,664,931 15,812 30,0538 3,710,801
EXPENSES
Instruction 497,149 . - 471,749
Research 133,310 - - 433,510
Healthcare services 2,220,928 - - 2,220,928
Public service 45,702 - . 45,702
Academic support 145317 - - 145,317
Stadent services 35,807 - - 35,897
Instiucional support 317,743 - - 37,743
Room, board, and other auxilfary services 108,554 - - 108,554
Total expenses 3,507,400 - - 3,567,400
Change in unrestricted net assets fronioperating activity 157,531
OTHER CHANGES IN NET ASSETS
Change &1 apprec iation of endowment, net of distrbutions (31.447) (62,982) - {84,429
Change in appreciation of self insurance assets 876 - - 876
Change i appreciation of other investments (2,476) - - (2,476)
Change i appreciatin of intere st rate exchange agreements (180,551) - - (180.551)
Contrdutions for plant 1,813 - - 1,813
Net assets released Fom restrictions for plant 24,210 (24,2109 - -
Deoneor designation changes (11,809) 325 11,484 -
Other (1,742) - . (1,742)
Toftal other ¢hanges in net assets {201,126} (36,3673 11,484 {276,509
(Decrease) increase in net assets controlled by Vanderbilt (43,385) (71,055 41,542 (73,108)
Tucrease in net assels related to noncontyolling interests 2,137 - - 2,137
Total {decrease) increase in net assets S (41458) § (71,058 S §1,542 3 (70,971)
Net assets, June 30, 2011 $ 2,802,646 S 1,262,271 $ 1,025,602 § 5,090,519
Net assets, June 39, 2012 $ 2,761,188  § 1191216 § 1,067,044 § 5,019,548

The accompenying notes ave an integral part of the consolidated foranc il statements,
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Vanderbilt University
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

Years Ended June 30, 2013 and 2012 (in thousands)

2013 2012
CASH FLOWSFROM OFERATING ACTIVITIES
Tucrease {decrease) in total net assets 319,771 S £70,971)
Adjustments ¢ reconcile change in tofal net assets
to net cash provided by operating activities:
Decrease {increase) in net assets related to noncontrolling hterests 14,485 (2,137
Wetrealized gains on investments (212,662) (56,783
WNet decrease mwrealized eppreciation on fvestnents 15,035 39,983
Contrbutions for plant and endowiment (72,180 {39,069
Contrdbutions of securities other than for plant and endowment (14,577 (10,095)
Depreciation and amortizat in 174330 172,718
Amvortization and reclassification of bond discounts and preminns (4,922) 1,430
Net (increase) decrease 4 fak valie of interest rate exchange agreements (108,84 180,551
{hcrease) decrease in:
Accounts receivable, net of accrued investment income 105,463 (81,6406)
Prepaid expenses and other assets {3,508} (3,411
Contrbutions receivable 2,632 6,238
Interests in trusts held by others 1,166 105
Increase (dacrease) in:
Accounts payabl and accred fiabilities, net of nonoperating irems {9,807 {14,126)
Accrued conpensation and w zhhoklings (10,650 20,499
Deferred revenue (25,797 (6,632}
Actuar ial Habiliry for seH-insurance 1,971 (5.805)
Actuarial ability for split-kiterest agreements (203) 1,396
Nat cash provided by operating activities 171,063 112,253
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchases of mvestments (3,770,165) (2,412,099)
Proceeds Fomsals of frvestments 3,712,975 2,231,160
Purchases of nvestments allocabl to noncontrolling interests (16,398) (38,707
Proceeds fom saks of fivestments allbocabl to noncontroling interests 65,208 46,815
Increase inacerued hvestment income ©9) {239)
Acquisitions of property, plant, and equipment {223 ,968) (143,089)
Proceeds fomdispesak of property, plant, and equipment 3,984 3,404
Stadent Toans and other notes recedrable disbursed (3. 747 (10,080
Princpaleolkcted on student boans and other notes receivable 5574 4,888
Net cash used in fiuvesting activities {226,606) {323,957)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Contributions for plant and endowment 72,i80 59,069
(Decrease) increase in govermment advances for student bans {61) 1,077
Proceeds Fomdebt issuances 169,603 180,231
Payments to retie or defease debt (204,316) (243,950)
Proceeds fom noscontroling interests in investment partnerships 16,358 38,707
Paymenis to noncontrolling interests in investment parmerships £63,208) (40,813)
Net cash used in financing activities (11,404) £5,681)
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents {66,947) s (217,385)
Cash and cash equivalents at begivning of year 912,419 $ 1,129,804
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 845,472 ) 912,419

The accompanying notes are an ftegral part of the consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

1. Organization

The Vanderbilt University (Vanderbalt) & a private, coeducational
not-for-profd, nonsectarian institution located in Nashwvilk, Tennes-
see. Founded in 1873, Vanderbilt owns and operates educational,
researchy, and health care facilities as part of its mission to be a lead-
ing center for informed and creative teaching, scholarly research,
and publ service. Vanderbilt provides educational services to ap-
proximatel 6,800 undergraduate and 5,900 graduate and profes.
sionalstudents enrolld in #s 10 schools and colleges.

These consolidated financial statements include the accounts ofall

entiies m which Vanderbilt has a signifirant financial interest and
over which Vanderbilt has control The patient care enterprise in-

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

chides Vanderbik Universiy Hospitab and Clinies; Vanderbilt
Medial Grow, a physician practice plary and Vanderbik Health
Services, Ine, (VHS), which nchudes whelly owned and joint ven-
tured businesses primaril comprised of commumity physician prac-
tizes, imaging services, outpatient surgery centers, radiation oncol:
ogy centers, a home health care agency, a home infusion and respir-
atory service, an affiliated health network, and a rehabil#ation hos-
pial

Al significant intercompany accounts and transactions have been
elininated in consoldation.

Basls of Presentation

The consolidated Snancial statements of Vanderbilt have been pre-
pared on the accrual basis in accordance with U.S. generall ac-
cepted accounting principles. Based on the existence or absence of
donor-imposed restrictions, Vanderbilt classifiss resources into
three categories: unrestricted, temporarily restricted, and perma-
nently restricted net assets.

Unrestrlcted net assets are free of donor-imposed restrictions,
All revenues, gains, and losses that are not temporarily or perma-
nently restricted by donors are e bded in ths chssification. AL
expenditures are reported in the uarestricted chss of net assets,
since the we of resiricted contrbutions in accordance with do-
nors” stipulations results in the release ofthe restriction,

Tengporarily restricted net assets are tmited as to use by donor-
imposed stipuhtions that expie with the passage of time or that
can be satisfied by action of Vanderbilt. These net assets may in-
clude wconditonal pldges, split-interest agreements, inferests
in trusts held by others, and accwenulated apprecistion on donor-
restricted endowments which have not yet been appropriated by
the Board of Trust for distribution.

Permanently vestrlcted net assets are amownts required by do-
nors to be Leld I perpetuity. These net assets may inchide -
cond#bnal pledges, donor-restricted endowments (at historical
vakwie), spli-interest agreements, and mterests in trusts held by
others. Generally, the donors of these assets permit YVanderbilt to
wse a portion of the income canwed on related imvestinents for
specific purposes.

Expirations of tempormy restrictions on niet assets, ie., the passage
oftime along with the concomiant annual Board of Trust approval
of the endowment spending rafe, andfor fulfilling donor-imposed
stpuhtions, are reported as net assets released from restrictions
between the applicable classes of net assets in the consolidated
statements ofactiviries.

Fale Value Measmrements

Financhl Accounting Standards Beard (FASB) Accounting Stand-
ards Codifivation (ASC) 820, Fair Value Measurements and Dis-
closure (ASC $20) defines fair vahue, requires expanded disclosures
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about fair vakiz measurements, and establihes a thres. bvelhierar-
chy for fair valie measwrements based on the observable inputs to
the vahmntion of an asset or lability at the measurement date, Fair
val is defined as the price that would be received to sell an asset
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between mar-
ket partkipants at the meastrement date. ASC 820 prioritizes the
fputs to the valiation techniques used to measwe fair value by
giving the highest priority to wnadjusted quoted prices i active
markets for dentical assets or liabilties {(Level 1 measurements)
and the lowest priority to measurements involving significant umob-
servabk inputs (Level 3 measuwrements),

Furthermore, ASC 820 considers cerfain inveshnent fimds that do
not have readily determinable fair values inebding private invest-
ments, hedge fimds, real estate, and other funds, ASC 520 allows
for using net asset value per share or its equivaknt i estimating the
far value of terests in investment companies for which a readily
determinabk: fair vale is not avaikble.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and eash equivaknts are liquid assets with mininalinterest
rate risk and maturities of three months or kss when purchased.
Sweh assets, reported at fair vale, primarily conskt of depository
account balances, money market fiwrds, and short-term U.S, Treas-
wy securities.

Prepaid Expenses and Other Assets

Prepaid expenses and other assets primanily represent iventoriss,
prepail expenses, and other segregated investment-related assets
managed by thied parties related to a legacy deferred compensation
program that are earmarked to ultimately settk certain Kabilities.
Ths htter group of assets, reported at fair value, is exchided from
the fnvestments category since Vanderbilt will not diectl benefit
from the mvestment retun.

Investments
Tnvestments are reported at fak value using the three- kvelhderarchy
established wider ASC §20. Fat valws for certain alternative in-

. vestments, mamly mvestments in limited partnerships where a

ready market for the investments does not exist, are based primarily
on estimates reported by find managers, The estimated vabwes are
reviewed and evaluted by Vanderbik,
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Vanderbilt has exposure to a munber of 1isks including Hquidity,
interest rate, counterparty, bask, fax, regulatory, market, and eredit
risks for both marketabk and nommarketabl: securitiss, Due to the
level of risk exposure, ¥ is possible that near-term vahution chang.
es for mvestment securitis may occur to an extent that could mate-
tally affect the amounts reported in Vanderbilt's financial state-
mients,

Vanderbik sometimes uses derivatives to manage investment mar-
ket risks and exposwe, Derivatives, which cousist of both internally
managed transactions and those entered into through external in.
vestment managers, are reported at fair value, The most common
instruments utilized are futures contracts and hedges against curren-
cy translation sisk for investments denominated in other than U.S,
dollars. For intermally managed transactions, Vanderbilt wtilizes
fatures contracts with durations of kess than three months,

Purchases and sales of securitics are recorded on the trade dates,
and realized gaits and losses are determined on the basis of the
average historical cost of the securities sold. Net receivabks and
payablks arising fom unsettled trades are reported as a component
of investments,

All endowment investments are managed as an investment pool,
unless donor-restricted endowment gifft agreements require that they
be held separately.

Investinents Atlocable to Noncontrolling Interests and

Net Assets Related to Noncontrolling Interests

For entities in which other organizations are miority equity partie-
ipants to Vanderbilt’s controlling interest, the respective assets are
reported separately on the consolidated statements of financial posi-
tion at fir valie as investments allocable to noncontrolling inter-
gsts.

The balance representing such organizations’ minority or noncon-
troling Interests is recorded based on contractual provisions, which
represent an estinate of a settlement vahie assuming the entity was
Hquidated in an orderly fashion as ofthe report date.

Split-Interest Agreements and

Interests in Trusts Held by Others

Vanderbil's split-interest agreements with donors cons kt primarily
of ¥revocablz charitabk remainder trusts, charitable gift annuitics,
and lifs income fimds for which Vanderbilt serves as trustee, Assets
hetd in these trusts are inchided in investments at fak valse, Contri:
bution revente is recogiized at the dates the trusts are established,
net of the Labilities for the present valoe of the estinated futwe
payments to be made to the donors and/or other beneficirizs. An-
mually, Vanderbilt records the change i fair value of split-interest
agreements based on the assets that are associated with each trust
and recakouhtes the labiliy for the present value ofthe estimated
fitture payments to be made to the donors and/or other beneficiaries.

Vanderbik is also the beneficiary of certa® trusts held and adminds-
tered by others, Vanderbilt's share of these trust assets is recorded
at far value as interests in trusts held by others with any resulting
gains or losses reported as investment income.

Property, Plant, and Equipment

Purchased property, plant, and equipment are recorded at cost, in-
cluding, where appropriate, capitalized interest on construction
financing net ofincome earned on unspent proceeds, Donated assets
are recorded at fir vali at the date of donation. Repairs and
mmaintenance costs are expensed as heurred, Additions to the Kbrary
colkction are expensed at the time of purchase,
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Depreciton is caleulated using the straight-line method to allocate
the cost of various classes ofassets over their estimated useful hives,
Property, plant, and equipment are removed ffom the accounting
records at the time ofdisposal.

Cond#tional assel retirement obligations rehted to kgal require-
ments to perform certain fihure activities associated with the retire-
ment, disposal or abandomment of assets are acerued utilizing site-
specific swveys to estimate the net present vahwe for applicabls
future costs, e.g., asbestos abatement or removal

Vanderbik reviews long-lived assets for mmpamment whenever
events or changes in circunstances mdicate that the carrying
amount of an asset may not be recoverable. An impatrment charge
& recognized when the fair value of the asset or group of assels is
Ess than the carrying vake.

Debt Portfello Financial Instruments

Long-term dsbt and capkal leases are reported at carrying vale,
The canrying vahie of Vanderbilt's debt & the par amount adjusted
for the net unamortized amount of bond premams and dscounts,
Vanderbik employs derivatives, primarily interest rate exchange
apreements, to help manage mterest rate risks associated with vari-
abk-rate debt, Derivative financial mstruments are reported at fair
vakie with any resulting gain or loss recognized as a nonoperating
#em in the consolidated statements of activities. In addiin to the
credi risk of the comterparty owing a balance, the fikr valie of
Mierest rate exchange agreements is based on the present value sum
of future net cash settlements that reflect market yields as of the
measwrement date. Periodic net cash settlement amounts with coun-
terpartiss are accoumted for as adjustments 1o mterest expense on
the related debt.

Partis to mterest rate exchange agreements are subject to rik for
changes #t interest rates as well as risk of credit bss in the event of
nenperformance by the counterparty, Vanderbilt deals only with
high-qualiy comnterpartss that meet rating criteria for financial
stabiliy and credit worthiness. Additionally, the agreements require
the posting of eollateral when amounts subject to credit risk under
the contracts exceed specified kvek, '

Revenue Recoguition
Vanderbil’s revenue recognitibn policies are:

Tultlon and educatlonal fees, net—Stodent futin and edwca-
tional foes are recorded as revenues during the year the rehted
academic services are rendered. Student tuition and educational
fees received i advance of services to be rendered are recorded
as deferred revenue. Financialad provided by Vanderbilt for tud-
tion and educatinalfees is reflected as a reduction of tudtion and
educativnal fees. Financial aid does not inchude payments made
to students for services provided to Vanderbik.

Grants and contracts, government sponsors—Revenues from
government—sponsored grants and contracts are recognized
when allowabls expenditures are incuwred wnder such agree-
ments.

Grants and contracts, private sponsors—Revenues from pri-
vate—sponsored grants and contracts are recognized when al-
bwabk expendifures are inowrred under such agieements.

Feelltites and adminlsirative (F&A) costs vecovery—F&A costs
fecovery is tecognized as revenue and represents reimbursement,
pranarily from the federal government, of F&A costs on spon-
sored activities. Vanderbil’s federal F&A costs recovery rate for
on-campus research was 56.0% i fiscal 2013 and 56.0% in fiscal
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2012, Vanderbil's federal F&A costs recovery rate for off
campus research was 28,5% in both fiseal 2013 and 2012,

Health eare services—Fealth care services revenue B reported at
established rates, net of contractual adjustments, charky assis-
tance services, and provision for bad debt. Third party contractual
revenie adjustments under governmental reimbursement pro-
grams are accrued on an estimated basis in the period the related
services are rendered. The estimated amounts for Mediare are
adjusted as final settlements are determined by Vanderbilt's
Mediare Administrative Contractor (MAC),

Vanderbik implmented the provisions of Accounting Standards
Update (ASU) 2011.07, Health Care Entities: Presentation and
Disclosure of Patient Seivice Revenue, Provision for Bad Debts,
and the Allowance for Doubtful Accounts for Certain Health
Care Entities (ASU 2011.07) which specifies that bad debt reht
ed to patient service revenue & to be reported as a compoenent of
net patient service revenue (contra revenue} for fiscal years be-
giming affer December 15, 2011, Vanderbilt elected to carly
adopt ASU 2011-07 for fiscal2012.

Contrlbutions

Uncondional prontises to give (pldges) are recognized as contri-
bution revenue when the donor’s commitinent is received, Pledges
with payments due to Vanderbilt in fiture perids are recorded as
increases in temporarily restrited or permanently restricted net
assets at the estimated present value of fiture cash flows, net ofan
albwance for estimated tncollectibls promises. Allowance i made
for wico ket k contrbutivns receivabk based upon Vanderbilt’s
analys i of past collection experience and other judgmental factors.

Contributions with doner-imposed restrictions are recorded as vare-
stricted revenue i those restrirtions are met o the sanie reporting
period, Otherwke, contrbutions with donor-imposed restrictions
are recorded as Mcreases in temiporarily restricted or permanently
restricted net asscts, depending on the natwe ofthe restriction.

Contrbutims recorded as temporarily restricted net assets are re.
leased from restrictions and recognized as wmrestricted net assets
affer any donor stipulations are met, Contributions for phnt facili-
ties are relzased from restrictions and recognized as a nonoperating
item only after resowrces are expended for the applicable phint ficil:
itiss,

In contrast to wnconditional promises as described above, condi-
tional promies {primarily bequest intentions} are not recorded wntil
donor contingencizs are substantiaily met.

Operating Results

Operating results {change 1 wnrestricted et asscis from operating
activity) in the consolidated statements of activities reflect all trans-
actions that change wirestricted net assets, except for nonoperating
activity related to endowment and other investments, ehanges in the
B value of derivative financilinstruments, contributions for phnt
faciltties, and certain other nonrecurring items,

Endowment distrbutions reported as operating revenus consist of
endowment rehun (regardkess of when such income arose} distrid-
uted to suppert cuwrent operational needs. Vanderbilt's Board of
Trust approves the amount to be ditrbuted fiom the endowment
pool on an anmal basi, determined by applying a spending rate to
an average of the previous three cakndar year-end market values.
The pranary objective of the endowment distribution methodology
is to reduce the impact of capital market fhwtuations on operational
programs.
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Operating investment income consists of dividends, interest, and
gains and losses on unrestricted, nonendowed vestments direetly
rehited to core operating activities. Such income inchides invest-
ment retens on Vanderbil’s working capital assets. For working
capitalassets #vested in long-term pookd ivestments managed in
conjunction with endowrent fimds, the amount resulting from pre-
established distributions fiom pookd investments & deemed operat-
g investment income; the difftrence between total returns for
these pooled hvesmments and the aforementionad pre-established
distrbutbns & reported as nonoperating activity. Operating invest-
ment income ako excludes ivestment returns on segregated gifl
finds and fimds set aside for nonoperating preposes such as sepre-
gated assets for selfiinsurance relative to malpractice and profes-
sinalliability and assets ondeposit with trustees.

Management and admmblrative support costs attributable to divi-
sions that primarily provide health care or awiliory services are
albeated based upon institatibnal budgets, Thus, institutional sup-
port expense separately reported in the consolfidated statements of
activitks relates to Vanderbilt's other primary programs such as
mstruction, research, and public service.

Costs rehated to the operation and maintenance of physical plhnt,
icuding depreciation of plant assets, are allcated 1o operating
programs and supporting activities based upon fcility usags. Addi-
tianall, interest expensz is a located to the activities that have ben.
efited most directly flom the debt proceeds,

Income Taxes

Vanderbik & a tax-exemnpt organization as deseribed in Section
501(c)3) of the Internal Reveme Code (the Code), and generally is
excmpt fiom federal income taxes on related income prasuant to
Section $01(a) of the Code. Vanderbili is, however, subject to fed-
eraland state income tax on unrelated business income, and provi-
son for such taxes is included in the accompanying consolidated
fiancilstatements,

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements requires the use of estimates
and assunptions that affzct the reported amounts of asscts, liabili:
tiss, revenugss, and expenses during the reporting period as wellas
the dbebstre of contingent assets and Liabilkies. Actual results
ulinated could differ from management’s estimates.

Redesignations

When donors amend or clarify intent for applicabk contributions
reported in a previous fiscalyear, revisions are separately refleeted
as donor desianation changes within the comsolidated statements of
activitics,

Reclassifications
Rechssifiratins within funetional expenses and accounts receiva-
bk have been made to prior year amownts to conform to the eurrent
year presentation.

Subsequent Events

On Sepiember 10, 2013, Vanderbik terminated a $40.0 million
notional fixed-payor mterest rate cxchange agreement wih Gold.
man Sachs at & cost of $6.5 million to reduce interest rate exchange
colhteralexposure and to ¢ Biminate ongoing carrying costs.
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3, Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable as of e 30 were as o llows (in fousands):

2013 2012
Patient care S 439,999 S 535654
Tuition'fees, grants, and other 95,086 103,861
Accruad ivestment ficone 2079 2,010
Accounts receivable, gross 537,164 641,523
Less: A fowmce for bad debts 123992 122,959
Accounts receivable, net § 413,172 § 518,566
Days receivable 4.6 30

Gross patient care receivables represented 81.9% and $3.5% oftotal
sross receivables as of Tune 30, 2013 and 2012, respectively. The
largest portion of patient care receivables reltes to Vanderbilt Uni-
versiy Hospitals and Clinics (the Hospital) and in tum the lrgest
component of the Hospital's recefvabks was from third party
payors.

The Hospital provides services to patients in advance of receiving
payment and generally does not require collateral or other seewwity
for those services. However, the Hospital routinely obtains assign-
ment of {or is otherwise entitled to receive) patients’ benefits pava.
bk under their health mswrance programs, phns, or policks {e.g.,
Medicare, Mediaid, TennCare, Blwe Cross, heakh maintenance
orgarizations, o other commercial insurance po ficies),

During fseal2013, due to a noted trend of an increasing balance of
aggregate patient care net receivables, abng with corresponding

4, Contributions Receivable

cash collections not being realized, Vanderbilt initiated an exten-
sive analysis of its patient care net revenue accountig and estima-
tion processes and systems, inchuding in-depth hindsight lquidation
analsk. This analysis resulted 3 the wiversity recording an unda.
vorabk $121 miltion change i estimate of the nef realizable value
of patient receivables during fiscal 2013, This change I estinate is
refleted as a reduction of health care services revenue in the ac-
compatying consolidated statements of activitics for the year ended
Tune 30, 2013,

As of Juie 30, the Hospitalhad receivables, net of related contrac-
tual albwances, inchading estimated amounts for cost reports and
other settbments with govemment payors, fiom the following
payors (i thonsands)

2013 2012
Medirare § 5422 $ 527282
TeamCareMedizaid 40,480 65,860
Bl Cross 64,910 79,578
Other commercialcarrers 84,707 136,195
Patiznt respons bility 30,941 43,571
Total Hospital receivables, net $ 275,258 $ 371,486

Patiznt care bad debt charges, reported as a reduction to healih care
services revenue on the consolidated statements of activities, totaled
$65.3 million and $65.7 million as of fune 30, 2013 and 2012, re-
spective iy {both recorded at gross charge bvel).

Contrbutins receivablke as of Tane 30 were as follows (i thou-
sands):

2013 2012
Unconditional promises expected
to be collected:
iy onle year of less § 32285 $ 3162
between one year and five years 48,229 50,659
in more than five years 1,122 3,509
Contributions receivable 81,636 85,789
Less: Unamortized discount 1,065 1,708
Less: Athwance for uncolkectb ke
promises 10,269 11,657
Confributions receivable, net § 70,302 $ 7333

Contrbutins receivabk are discownted at a rate commensurate
with the sehedukd tining of receipt. Such amounts outstanding as
of June 30, 2013, and June 30, 2012, generally were discounted at
rates ranging from 0,5% te 1.5%.
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The methodolbgy for ealeuhting an allowance for weollectible
promises is based upon Vanderbik’s analysis of write-offs as a per-
centage of pross pkdges receivable along with assessing the age
and activity ofoutstanding p kdges.

In addition to pldges reported as contributions recedvable,
Vanderbit had cumubtive bequest mtentions of approximately
$244.0 million and $246.5 million as of June 30, 2013 and 2012,
respeetively. These intentions to give are not recognized as assels
duz to ther conditional nature,

Contrbutions recetvable, net as of June 30, were classified as ok
bws (in thousands):

2013 2012

Contributions receivable, net:
Tenporarily restricted $ 26,555 S 32741
Permanently restricted 43,747 39,593
Total $ 76,302 $ 733\




Vanderbilt University

5, Student Loans and Other Notes Receivable

Student Ioans and other notes receivabk, net, as of Tune 30 along
with rehted allowances for doubtfil accounts were as follows (in
thousands):

2013 2012
Net Related Net Related
Receivable Allowance Receivable Allowance
Federal bans $ 18223 § Lies S 17979 S 1,780
Institutional bans 18,376 2,752 20,240 2,733
Faculry mortgages 6,983 - 7,198 -
Student loans andl other
notes receivable, net  $ 43,382 S 43,409

Vanderbik remains committed to “no-loans” for its wndergraduate
students, meaning that the undversity is meetmg full demonstrated
finsneis] need with scholarship and grant assistance. For other
erows (e.g., professional school students), partijpation in several
foderalrevolving ban programs, including the Perkins program, has
continued, The avaibbilty of fimds for boans under these programs
is dependent on reimbursements to the pool fom repayments ot
outstanding Joans, Funds advanced by the federal government ulti-
mately are reflmdable to the government and are classified as liabil:
ities in the statements of financial position. Outstanding lcans can-

6. Investments

celked wnder the program result in a reduction ofthe funds availible
for fean and a decrease in the liability to the govemment,

Ine hded in instittional loans as of Tune 30, 2013, & an outstanding
note receivabk of $3.6 million fom MeKendree Villige, LLC, an
affiliate of Vanderbik that has sold alf of its operations and s in the
process of dissolving. Because it is unlikely McKendree Villge,
LLC, willbe ablk: to repay this debt, it has been fully reserved mthe
conso dated financial statements,

Albwances Hr doubtfill accoumts are established based on prior
colketion experience and cwwrent economic factors which, in man-
agement’s judgment, could influence the ability of ban recipients fo
repay amounts dus, Instivtional loan bakinces are writen off only
when they are deemed to be permanenty vacolkctible,

As part of Vanderbill’s efforts to attract and retain a world-class
facudy, Vanderbilt provides home mortgage financing assstance.
Notes receivable amownting to $7.0 million were outstanding at
June 30, 2013, These notes are collateralized by deeds of trust on
propertics concentrated in the surrounding region. No allowanee for
doubtful accounts has been recorded against these loans based on
thet collateralization and prior colketion history.

The fifr valie of lvestments consists of the fHllowing as of June 30
(in thousands):

2013 2012
Derivative contract collateral and
short-term securitizs! S 93,632 $ 259,835
Equity investments
Develiped market equitias ? 652,091 138,400
Emerging narket equities 2 367,423 379,499
Fixed freone ! 268,710 451,220
Absohte return 905,344 673,064
Other hedge funds ? 91,596 160,369
Private equiy’ 766,243 745,136
Ventwre capital’ 488,936 433,306
Realestate® 320,124 322,836
Natwalresources’ 341,942 274,183
Equity methed securities and frusts’ 19,853 18,082
Other fivestments® 11415 12,450
Total fair value § 4,328,309 § $,673,400
Totalcost $ 3,849,347 § 3,570,332

U Fak value & based primarily on quoted prizes in active markets.

3 Fair vabe is based cn the net asset vahie per sharg of tha specife hwvestments as
provided by tha find managers.

3 Pak valie s based on the nct asset valze of Vanderl's ovnershd hiterests at the
fund ¥velas provided by the find managers.

4 Carrying vakiz provides a reascnabk estinate of fair va e for cetain components.

Inchded & the amotwts reported in the tabk above are investments
allocable to noncontroling interests (e, minority imited partners)
reported at fak vahwe. During fiseal 2013, the minority limited part-
ners fimded capitalcommitments totaling $16.4 million. Additional-
Iy, Vanderbilt made payments to the miority limited partners of
$65.2 milfion reflecting a distrbution of earnings and reumed capi-
tal from the under b ing private fund assets, For the year ended Tane
30, 2013, the minority limited partners’ interests i the results of'the
underly ing returns fom the private find assets were $210.4 million,
The balance of wrrestricted net assets related to noncontrolling in-
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terests, cabubted in accordance with the partnership agreements,
was $186.9 million as of June 30, 2013.

Inwestments, along with cash and cash equivalents, provide liquidity
support for Vanderbilt's operations, Of these combined amounts,
based on prevailiig market conditons as of Tune 30, 2013, $725.8
millon was availibl on a same-day basis and an additional
$1,139.3 million was available within 30 days.

Exchiding derivative instruments that may be held by investment
managers as part of their respective investment strategits,
Vanderbil held financial fitures derivative contracts with notional
vakies of$278.7 million and $720.2 million as of Tune 30, 2013 and
2012, respectively, The fai market vale of such contracts is settled
daily between counterparties,

Short-ternt seenritles and devivative contract collateral are
comprised primarily of amounts posted as collateral 1 accord-
ance with interest rate exchange agreements and unspent bond
proceeds with trustees.

Eguity investments consist of investment funds globally diversi-
fied across public markets melding U.S, markets, other devel-
oped markets, and emerging markets. Fund managers of these in-
vestiments have the abilty to shiff investments from vale to
growth strategies, fiom small to large capitalization stocks, and
from a net long postion to a net short position.

Developed market equities are compried of investments in
U.S. common stocks and other developed countries whose
markets have a rehtively high level of economic growth and
securty,

Ewmerglng market eguitles inchde investments in the
emerging gbbal cconomies as defined by Morgan Stanky
Capitalluternational (MSCI) Emerging Markets Index.
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Fixed income investments are directed towards capital preserva-
tion and predictabl: yield as well as mere opportunistic strategies
focused on generating refuen on price appreciation. These in-
vestnents generally const of U.S. Treaswy debt securitiss, but
may alse ickde other highl liquid debt securities.

Absolute retirn investments reflect mukiple strategies such as
event driven, relative vake, and equity fimds to diversify risks
and reduce vohtility in the portfoliv generally in hedge fimd
structures.

Other hedge fund investments nclide nivestments in both Jong
and short primarily credit-orianted sccurities. Iuvestments may
inchude mortgage—backed securities, trade finance, debt and as-
set-backed sectr#iss, repurchase agrecinents, senior lbans, and
bank Ioans.

Private equlty inchudes investments that participate primarily in
Ieveraged buyout strategies. Distributions fiom these investments
are received through liquidations of the underlying assets. These
irvvestments generally are held in commingkd limited partiership
fimds.

7. Endowment

Venture capital consists of avestments that participate in early-
stage, high-potential, higherisk, growth startup companies. These
vestments generally are hel in commingled limited partnership
fimds, Datrbutins Fom these investments ate received through
liyuidatons of the underlying assets.

Real estate is comprised of illuid #rvestments #1 residentisl and
commercialreal estate assets, projects, or land held divectly or in
commingkd Emited partnership fands. The nature of the invest-
ments 11 this category is such that distributions generally reflect
Hquidation of the underlying assets of the finds.

Natural vesonrces incldes illiquid investments in timber, oiland
gas production, mining, energy, and rehted services businesses
heH directly or in commingld fimited parmership fwds.

Equity method secaritles and frasts are nvestments in joint ven-
tures accounted for under the equity method of accounting and
Vanderbilt's split-interest agreements with donors,

Endowment-re hited assets inchude donor-restricted endowments and
instiutionalendowments (quasi-endowments), Gift annuitics, inter-
ests in trusts held by others, contributions pending donor designa-
tion, and contributions receivable are not considered components of
the endowment.

The Board of Trust's terpretation of its fiduciry responsibilitics
for donor-restricted endowmnents under the Uniform Prudent Man-
agement of Institutional Funds Act (UPMIFA) requirements, bar-
ring the exktence of any donor-specific provisions, is to preserve
intergenerational equity. Under this broad guidetine, fiture endow-
ment beneficiaries should receive at kast the same kevel ofeconom-
ic support as the current generation, The overarching objective is to
preserve and enhance the real (inflation-adjusted) prrchasing power
of the endowment in perpetuity. Assets are invested to provide a
rehtively predictable and stable stream of eamings to meet spend-
ing needs and attain long-term return objectives without the as-
sumption of undue risks.

UPMIFA specifies that unless stated otherwie in a giff instrument,
donor-restricted assets 1 an endowment flnd are restricted assets
untilappropriated for expenditure, Barring the exdstence of specific
instructbns in gift agreements for donor-restricted endowiments,
Vanderbil reports the historical vahse for such endowments as per-
manently resteicted net assets and the net accumuhted appreciation

as temporarily restricted net assets. In this context, historical value
represents the orighal valie of initial contributions restricted as
pennanent endowments plus the original vales of subsequent cotr
triutions and, if applicable, the vahie of secumubtions made in
accordance with the direction of specific donor gift agreements.

Specili appropriation for expenditwe of Vanderbik’s endowment
fimds occwrs each spring when the Board of Trust approves the
wniversiy®s operating budget for the ¢nsuing fiscal year, For fiscal
years 2013 and 2012, Vanderbilt’s Board of Trust approved ene
dowment distributions based on 4.5% of the average ofthe previous
three calendar year-end market values, Actual realized endowment
return eamed in excess of distribitions & remvested as part of
Vanderbil's endowment, For years where actual endowment retuen
& Less than the distribution, the shortfall is covered by the endow-
ment pool's cumubitive returns ffom prior years.

Board-appropriated endowment distribtions may not be fally ex-
pended during a particular fiscal year. In some cases, endowment
distrbutions may be approved for reinvestment inte the endow-
ment,

A sanmary of Vanderbil's endowment for the fiscal years ended
Fane 30 folbws (in thousands):

2013
Temporanily Pernanently
Unrestricted Restricted Restricted Total

Donor-restricted endownents at historical vahe - S 23454 § 1,021.802 $ 1,045,346
Accuwmulated net appreciation of donor-restricted endowments - 1,136,106 - 1,136,106
Reinvested distrbutfons of donor-restricted endowments

At historicalvabee 137,686 1,642 - 139,328

Accumuated net apprecfation 156,864 1,927 - 158,791
Institutional endownents

At historicalvaie 265,684 . - 265,681

Accumulbited net appreciation $90,088 - 390,088

Eudowment nef assets as of June 30, 2013

$ 1,450,323

S 1,163,129 § 1,021,802 § 3,635,343
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2012
Temporarily Pernunently
Uurestricted Restricted Rastricted Total

Donor-restricted endowments at historicalvahe S - S 26889 $ 962,796 $ 989,685
Accumutated net apprecition of donor-restricted endownents - 1,040,036 . 1,040,036
Reinvested distrbutions of donor-restricted endowments

At historicalvalue 133,836 1,641 - 135977

Accumulated net appreciation 144321 1,767 - 146,088
Institutionat endowments

At historalvalne 208,716 - . 208,716

Accurnulited net appreciation 840,034 . - 810,034
Encowment net assets as of June 30, 2012 S 1,326,907 $ 1,070,333 § 962,796 S 3,360,036

The components ofthe 1ife-to-date acoumulated net apprecition of
pooled endowinents as of Fune 30 were as o lows (in thausands):

2013 2812

Net realized appeeciation kss

endowment distr outions 3 1,838,135
Net unrealized appreciation 346,850
Total $ 2,184,985

$ 164,115
382,043
S 2,026,158

In striving to meet the overarching objectives for the endowment,
over the past 20 years, there has been an 11% anmulized standard
deviation in Vanderbilt’s returs, This level of risk is consbtent
with that accepted by peer institutions, Cwrentl, the endowment
portfolis consists of three primaty components, each of which &
desioned to serve a specific rok in establishing the right balance
between risk and retum. Global public and private equity invest-
ments, fichiding ventiwe capial and many hedge fimds, are ex-
peeted fo produce favorablk returns in envivonments of accelerated
growth and cconomic expansion. Absolute return and fixed income

ivestments are expected to generate stabk returns and preserve
capial during periods of poor equity performance, Real estate and
nahural resources albeatins are designed to provide an infhtion
hedge.

From time to time, the fit value of assets associated with an en-
dowed find may fall below the level that a donoer or UPMIFA re-
quires in terms of mamtenance of perpetial dwration endowments.
As of Tune 30, 2013 and 2012, Vanderbilt had deficiencies of this
nature of approximately $6 million consiting of 139 endowments
and $11 million conskting of 328 endowments, respectively. These
defiincks resuked from unfivorabk market declines that oc-
curred afler the investment of recent permanently restricted contri-
butions, Vanderbilt believes these declines are modest in re htin to
the total market vahie for donor-restricted endowments and that
these deficiencics willbe re htively short-term #nnature,

Changes i endowiment net assets for the fiscal years ended June 30
were as folbws (i thousands):

2013
Termporarily Pernunently
Unrestricted Restricted Restricted Total

Endownant net assets as of June 30, 2012 $ 1,326,907 S 1,070,333 $ 962,796 $ 3,360,036
Endowment investment retirn:

Inwvestnent income, net of fees 63,894 98,211 . 162,105

Net appreciation (realized and wrealized) 61,987 95,278 - 157,265
Totalendowment fivestment return 125,881 193,489 - 319370
Gifts and add#ions to endowment, net 50,809 (3,435) 59,096 116,470
Endownent distrbutions £59,342) (91,219) - (150,536)
Transfers for internal anagement costs (108 {6,309) - (10,413
Other ) o 11 265 - 436
Endowment net assets as of June 30, 2013 $ 1,450,322 $ 1,163,129 S 1,021,892 $ 3,635,343
2012

Femperarily Permanently
Unrestricted Restricted Restricted Tetal

Endowment net assets as of June 30, 2011 $ 1,331,327 S 1,133,076 S 910,750 $ 3,375,153
Endownrent investment return:

Investiment income, net of fees 15,725 24,672 . 40,397

Net appreciation {realized and unrealized) 4,848 7,607 - 12,455
Total endowment hvestment retwen 20,573 32,279 . 52,852
Gifts and addi bns to endownent, net 35,722 240 52,046 88,608
Endowtnent distrbutions (57,569) £90,326) - ($47,895)
Transfers for internalmanagement costs (3.385) (5,311) - {8.696)
Other 239 375 - (38
Endowment net assets as of June 30, 2012 S 1,326,907 § 1,070,333 S 962,796 § 3,160,036
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8. Investment Return

A summary of mvestment return, ineluding endowment distribu.
tions, by net asset category for the fiscal years ended June 30 ol
lows {in thousands):

2013 2012

OPERATING
Unrestricted:
Endownent disa butions S 134,801 $ 136,883
Investnent income 19,675 19831
Totzl operating veturn 164,476 156,714
NONOPERATING
Unrestricted:
Change in appreciation of instinutional

endownents, net of distrbutions 73,019 31,447y
Change in appreciation of

self-insurance assets 5,132 476
Investment {bss) inrome 23,149 {2478)
Teniporarily restricted:
Endowment distrbutions 4,476 8,565
Investiment income 854 276
Change i appreciation of

donor-restricted endownents,

net of distributions 06,231 62,980
Permanently restricted:
Endowment distrbutions 1,279 2447
Investment (loss) income 1,337 €969}
Total nonoperating refurm 205,577 (85,710)
Total investment retaim § 3NH53 § 71,004

9. Property, Plant, and Equipment

The components oftotal fwvestment retum for the fiscal years ended
JTume 30 were as follows (i thousands):

2013 2012
Net interest, dividend, and
parmership come S 173,743 § 54210
Net realized gains fiom originaleost 212,662 56,783
Change inwirealized appreciation {16.352) {39,989
Total investment refiim S 370,053 s 71,004

In addition to a core group of vestment professionals dedicated to
the mamagement of Vanderbil’s endowment, Vanderbilt ako cm-
phbys external investment managers, Paticularly for alternative
vestments such as hedge fimds, investment manager fee struchuwes
fiequently have a base component along with a performance com-
ponent rehtive to the entie life of the investments, Under these
arrangements, management fees fequently are subjeet to substantial
adjustments based on cumulative fiture returns for a number of
years hence,

Investment reburns are reported net of retums attributed to limited
partners on investments allocable to noncoutrolling inteyests. In-
vestment returns are ako reported net of nternal management costs
of $10.4 million in fiscal 2013 and $8.7 millbn in fieal2012,

Fees paid dhectd to externalinvestment managers (Le., segregated
#vestment accownt fees) totaled $9.6 miltion and $9.0 million in
fcal2013 and 2012, respectively.

Property, plant, and equipment as of June 30 were as fllows (in
thausands):

2013 2012
Land $ 73397 S 73858
Buitdings and ivprovements 2,714,757 2,657,197
Moveablk equipment 892,230 879,482
Constnction in progress 160,893 55,264
Property, plant, and equipment 3,841,777 3,665,802
Less: Accurnlated depreciation 2,060,484 1,938,191

Property, plant, and equipioent, net $ 1,781,293 $ 1,727,611

Purchases for the lbrary collection are not inclided in the amounts
above sixe they are expensed at the time of purchase. As of Tune
30, 2003, the estimated replacemert cost for lbrary colketivns,
including processing costs to properly identify, catabg, and shelve
materials, totaled about $359 million.
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Ne inferest was capitatized meither fiseal 2013 or fscal2012,

Internally developed software costs of $5.4 million and $7.5 million
were capitalized in fiscal 2013 and 2012, respectively.

Vanderbit has identified condi¥bnal asset retrement obligations,
primarily for the costs of asbestos removal and disposal, resukig in
thbiltis of $19.9 million and $20.0 million as of June 30, 2013
and 2012, respectively. These liabilities, which are estimated wsing
an inflation rate 0£4.0% and a discount rate of 5,0% based onrele-
vant factors at orimination, are fickded i1 accounts payabl and
aceruzd liabilitiss @ the consolidated statements of financhl posi-
tion.
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10, Long-Term Debt, Capital Leases, and Commercial Paper

Long-term debt consists of bonds and notes payable with scheduled
fina lmaturity dates at kast one year after the original issvance date,
Outstand g Jong-tern debt, capital kases, and commercnl paper

(CP) obligations are reflected in the financial statements at canying
vake and, as of fune 20, were as folibws (i thousands):

Outstanding
Years to Fixed Coupon Fiscal 2013
Nominal  Intevest Ratesas  Effective Qutstanding Principal
Maturity  of June 30, 2013 Interest Rate! 2013 1012
FINED-RATE DEBT
Serizs 2008A 6 4.50%-5.00% +4.0% $ 117,600 $ 122,600
Series 2003B* 3 4.60%-5.00% 3.9% 95,650 105,710
Serfes 200%A 27 4.00%5-5.50% 4.9% 97,100 97,100
Serizs 2009B° 7 5.00%-550% 5.0% 232,900 232,900
Serias 2009A Taxabl: 6 3.25% 5.3% 250,600 250,000
Serizs 2012C 5 2.00%-5.00% 1.1% 25875 42,315
Series 2012D 25 3.009%-5.00% 3.2% 106.230 -
Series 2012E 7 2.00%%-5.00% 0.8% 45,225 -
Fixed-rate debt 4.4%% 970,590 850,625
VARIABLE-RATE DEBT
Series 2000A 0.3% - 33,300
Series 2005A 0.3% - 68,000
Series 2012A 26 0.5% 57,000 67,000
Serkes 20128 26 0.7%% 67,000 67,000
Variable-rate debt 0.6% 134,000 285,300
Par amount of fong-termdebt 3.8% 1,104,590 1,105,925
Wet unamortized premianm . 234 9,145
Total bing-term debt 3.8% £,126,931 1,085,040
Capital Bases 1to2 6.0% 527 1,989
Total long-termn debt and capital teases 3.8% 1,127,458 1,117,029
Tax-exemrpt commercial paper <i 0.3% 99,205 149,205
Taxabk commercial paper <] 0.3% 114,806 114,870
Total commercial paper 0.3% 214,011, 264,075
Total long-terin debt, capital leases, and commercial paper 3.2% $ 1,341,469 S 1,381,104

! Tssued under Master Trust Indenture struchre.

2Egchisive of terest rate exdhiange agreements. Inchisive ofthese age ements, the oveall partfolip effectize mterest rate was 5.1%.

The preceding tabk reflects fisedAvariabk allocations before the
effects of interest rate exchange agreements, Such agreements are
covered i more detailin a successive note.

Tax-exeript CP and all of the aforementioned bonds {with the ex-
eeption of the Series 20094 Taxable notes) have been issved by the
Healh and Edwcational Facilitizs Board of The Metropolitan Gov-
ernment of Nashville and Davidson County, Tennessee (HEFB). As
a conduit &suer, the HEFB loans the debt proceeds to Vanderbik.
Pursuant to ban agreements, Vanderbil’s debt service requirements
vnder these loan agreements coinede with required debt service of
the actual HEFB bonds.

All debt instrumients are general obligations of Vanderbilt, No as-
sets are pldged as collateral for such debt.

Included in fie foregoing tabk are hospital and clini (patient care)
bonds, wih a principal balance outstanding of $328.6 milkion as of
Tune 30, 2013, that were issued under a Master Trust Indenture
EMT1) structure, The MTI provides the flexibility for multiple par-
tics to participate in debt dssvances as part of an obligated group;
presenty, Vanderbilt's hospitals and clinies have no other members
participating in the obligated group, Bonds issued under the MTI
are payable from hospital revenucs, All outstand ing MTI bonds are
also supplemented by a Vanderbit guarantee of debt service.
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Trwst indentures for certain bond Bsues contain covenants and re-
stristions mvelvhg the issuance of additionaldebt, maintenance of
a specified debt service coverage ratio, and the maintenance of k-
quidiy facilities, Vanderbilt was in compliance with such covenants
and restrictions as of June 30, 2013,

Seketed nformaton for debt, CP, and interest rate exchange
agreements follows {in thousands):

2013 2012
Payments r interest costs s 71,475 S 72,125
Acerued interestexpense S 63,108 5 67977

Payments for interest costs, inchuding amounts capitalized, ocour on
vary g schedubd payment dates for debt, maturity dates for CP,
and settlement dates for inkerest rate exchange agreements. Accrued
fterest cxpense is based on applicable interest rates for Vander-
bil’s debt, CP, and hterest rate exchange agreements for the re-
spective fiscalyear,
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Principal retirements and schedukd sinking flnd requirements
based on nominal matwity schedules for Jong-tenm debt due in
subsequent fiscal years ending Tune 30 are as folbws fin thou-
sands):

2014 S 38465
2015 40,240
2016 54,245
2017 44,873
2018 47,070
Thereafier 879,695
Total long-teimn debt principal retirements $ 1,104,500

In addition to scheduled prineipal and iterest payments on long-
term debt obligations, Vanderbilt’s capital lease agreements out-
stand g as of June 30, 2013, will require payments of 30,4 miltion
durmg fiseal 2014, Ofthose payments, $0.4 million willbs allocat.
ed toward amortizing the $0.5 million capital lease obligation. Fur-
thermore, requirements noted in the preceding table could be great-
er if Vanderbilt must purchase either a portion or all of #s fhating-
rate notes or CP in the event of failed remarketings, on mandatory
tender dates, or schedulkd maturities as described in the Hllowing
paragraphs.

Vanderbik had $134.0 million of variable-rate bonds outstanding as
of Fune 30, 2013, consisting entirely of floating-rate notes with
mandatory tender dates of October 1, 2015 and 2017.

As of hme 30, 2013, Vanderbilt had $99.2 million of tax-exempt
CP outstanding and $114.8 million of taxable CP cutstanding.
Vanderbik can Bsue up to a combined $675.0 million under its tax-
exempt and taxable CP programs. However, issuance of incremen-
tal taxable CP beyond that outstanding as of hme 30, 2013, would
requie approval by Vanderbilt's Board of Trust, and Bsuance of
incremental tax-exempt CP would require approval by both
Vanderbil’s Board of Trist and the HEEB as condud issuer.

The weighted average duratibon of Vanderbilt's CP portfoli totald
106 days as of June 30, 2013, and 151 days as of Tune 30, 2012,

Liquidiy support for debt with short-tenn remarketing periods {CP
totaling $214.0 million) & provided by Vanderbil's selfliquidity.
As of June 30, 2013, Vanderbik estimates that $725.8 million of
Hquid asscts were available on a same-day basis and an additional
$1,139.3 million was available within 30 days.

A second tier of liquidity suppost consists of two bank revolving
credit fciltes wih maximam avaihble commitments totaling
$400.0 miltion as of June 30, 2013, dedated to Vanderbilt's debt
portfo b liquidity support; one of these fines totaling $200.0 million
inebes a general wse provision. These commitments expie in
March 2014 and March 2016, The maximum repayment period,
which may extend beyond the expiration date, ranges ffom 90 days
to three years, Vanderbill has never borowed against revolving
credi agrecments to support redemptions of debt.
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Vanderbik has alo entered into an agreement with one bank to
provide a general use line of credit with a maximun available
commiment totalmg $100.0 million as of Juns 30, 2013, This line
of eredit expires in October 2014, No amounts were drawn on these
ered ¥ facilities as of Tune 30, 2013, or fune 30, 2012,

Vanderbil’s long-term debt is reported at carrying vahse, which is
the par amount adjusted for the net wnamortized amount of bond
premauns and diseounts. The carrying value and estimated markst
vakie of Vanderbil’s long-tem debt as of Iune 30 were as follows
(#n thousands):

2013 2012
Canryihig value of bong-term debt $ 1,126,931 § 1,135,040
Market valie of Iong-termdebt 5 1,196,940 $ 1,205,749

The estimated market value of Vanderbil’s Jong-term debt is based
on market conditions prevaiting at fiseal year-end reporting dates.
Besides potenthly volatik market conditions, market valwe esti:
mates typially also reflect limited secondary market trading,
Vanderbil’s eapital kases and commercial paper are abo reported
at carrying vahe, which closely approximates market vale for
those liabilities.

On November 29, 2012, Vanderbilt ksued Serics 2012D and 2012E
bonds aggregating $1514 million for the pupose of redeeming
weekly reset variable-rate debt and tax-exempt commercial paper.
The Series 2012D fixed-rate bonds were issued i the par amount of
$106.2 million and inchsde an original issue premium of $13.4 mil
Fon, The proceeds from Series 2012D were used to fund the full
redemptibn of Vanderbilt's variable-rate Serkes 2000A and 2005A-
1. The Series 2012D bonds have an average coupon of 3.9% and a
faal matwrdy of October 1, 2037, The Scrics 2012E fixedrate
bonds were issued in the par amount of $45.2 million and inchade
an original issue premivm of $4.8 million. The proceeds from Se-
rizs 2012E were wed to reflnd $50.0 million of tax-exempt com-
mereial paper. The Series 2012E bonds are noncallable with an
average coupon of 3,5% and a finalmaturity of October 1, 20190,

None of Vanderbilt's fixed-rate debt has a mandatory tender date
preceding the respective fmalmaturity date. The Serks 2008A and
20088 bonds include amortizing principal amounts each year but
these bonds are noncallable before their October 2018 final maturity
date. The Series 2009A and 20098 bonds include amortizing prin-
cipalamounts each year beginning fiscal 2016 and these bonds may
be called at par beginning October 2019, The Series 2009A Taxable
notes do not amortize and are callble before the April 2019 maturi-
ty date only if Vanderbilt pays a make-whole call provision to the
bondhoYers. The Series 2012C bonds inchnde annual amortizing
principal amounts each year, excluding October 2015, until their
final maturity in Qctober 2017. The Series 2012D bonds inchude
amortizing principal amownts cach year beginning in fiscal 2021
and may be called at par beginning October 2023, The Series 2012E
bonds inchide annual amortzing principal amounts beginning Oe-
tober 2013, until thek final maturdy in October 2019,
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11, Interest Rate Exchange Agreements

Vanderbil has entered into intesest rate exchange agreements as
part of #s debt portfoliv management strategy. These agteements
result in periodic net cash settlments paid to, or received fom,
counterparties. Net settbments due to coumterpartics totaked 525.8
million and $25.5 million i fscal2013 and 2012, respectively, and
were reflected as adjustments to interest expense.

The fiir valee of interest rate exchangs agreements is based on the
present value swm of future net cash settkments that reflect market
vicHs as of the measwement date and reflects estimated amounts
that Vanderbilt would pay, or receive, to terminate the confracts as
ofthe report date. The estimated fair value of Vanderbilt's outstand-
ing interest rate exchange agreements was a Habilty 0£3206.7 mil-
tion and a Iabilly of $315.6 million as of June 30, 2013 and 2012,
respectively.

Vanderbit did not enter nto any new interest rate exchange agree-
ments during fiscal 2013 or 2012, In October 2012, V anderbilt no-
vated $200 million of fixed-payer interest rate exchange agreements
in order to diversify counterparty risk and reduce the wniversity’s
aggregate collateral posting requirements, Following the novation
and schedukd amortizations, Vanderbik had $718.2 million of ag-
gregate fixed-payor interest rate exchange agreements outstanding

LIBOR and pays a weighted average fixed rate of3.78%.

Ganws and losses fom changes in the fair valwe of terest rate ex-
change agreements are reported I the nonoperating section of the
consoldated statements of activities. These changes resuked i net
gains of $108.9 million in fical2013 and net bsses of $180.6 mil-
Ton in fseal2012,

The interest rate exchange agreements inchude colhteral pledging
requirements based onthe fak vahwe ofthe contracts. Collateraiheld
by counterparties as of June 30, 2013 and 2012, totaked $95.1 mil-
lion and $236.2 miltion, respectively. Vanderbilt estinates that a
declise in bng-term LIBOR rates to approxanatelr 2% would result
1 the fair vale of the portfolio being a lability of approximately
$420 million and correspendingly increase Vanderbik's collateral
plkdging requiements to approximately $250 million. As of June
30,2013, 30-vear LIBOR was 3.45%,

As of e 30, 2013, Vanderbil's adjusted debt porifolio, affer
takmg into account outstanding fixed-payor mterest rate exchange

agreements, was approximately 128% fixed.

The notional amoumts of Vanderbil's outstanding inferest rate ex-

for which the uwniversity receives 68.3% of one-month change agreements as of une 30 were as folbws (in thousands):
Description Rate Paid Rate Received Maturity 2013 2012
Fixed-payor interest Avg fixed rate Avg of 68.3% of 18 to 32 years $ 718,200 § 7211600
rate exchange of3.78% one-month LIBOR?

agreaments’

Basis interest SIFMA? Avg of 81.5% of 22 to 23 years $ 500,000 S5 500,000

rate exchange one-menth LIBOR?

agreements

! For one amortizing fixed-payor fiterest rate exchange agreement that lias anotionsl balincs 0f$51.6 million as of fme 30, 2013, the counterparty may exercise an option to
tenmitate the conteact, i whok or in part 2nd atno cost, at any time. fiom that date untilthe fMalmaturdy in October 2030,

? LIBOR (L. mdon Intetbank Offered Rate) s a reftrence rate based on nterest rates at which giobal banks borrow finds from other banks i the Lendon nterbank knding market.

} STEMA (Securtiss Industsy and Financial Markets Association) & a seven- day high- grade market dex rate based upen tax-exenipt varisbi cate debt oblizations.

12, Netf Assets

Unrestricted net nssets are internally designated into the following
groups:

Designated for operations represents the cumubtive operating
activily of Vanderbilt and phnt replacement reserves, These net
assets also refket the realized Josses of derivative fmancing ac-
tivities,

Designated gifts and grants are composed of gift and grant fimds.

Designated for student loans represents Vanderbilt funds set
aside to serve as revolving loan finds for students.

Designated for plant facilities represents (a) Venderbilt’s vest-
ment in property, phnt, and equipment, net of accumulated de-
preciation, as well as (b) fimds designated for active construction
projects and retirement of capital-related debt, offet by (c) Van-
derbilt’s conditional asset retirement ob lization.

Reinvested distributions of donor-restricted endowments at his-
torical value are amounts related to donor-restricted endowments
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that are reinvested In the endowment in accordance with donor
requests.

Aceunuidated net appreciation aof reinvested distributions repre-
sents cumulafive appreciation on reivestments of donor-
restricted endowments.

Institutional endowments (quasi-endowments) at historical value
are amounts st aside by Vanderbilt to generate incomge in perpe-
tuity to support operating needs.

Aecumulated net appreciation of institutional endovwments repre-
sents cumulitive apprec tion on nstiutionalendowments.

Fair value of interest rate exchange agreemenis, nef represents
the mark-to-market valuation for such contracts, Because these
agreements are intended to manage interest rate risks wihin the
debt portfolio, segregation fom other designativns is maitained.

Net assels related to noncontrolling interests represents minority
partners’ share of the equity in two partnerships (endowment pri-
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vate equity and real estate partnerships) formed to acquire, loH,
and manage private fund assets,

Such temporarily restricted net assets were designated for (he 1}
bwing pusposes as of Fune 30 (in thousands):

Based on the foregoing designations, unrestricted net assets as of 2013 2012
June 30 were as follows (7n thousands): Student schokaships S 391674 S 353,543
Endowed chafs 332416 301,373
2013 2012 Operations 258,606 234,383
Toesignated for operations S 6BE.G45 S 693,025 Progeam support 90,451 51,097
Designated gifis and grants 103,438 118,023 Capital ivprovenents 11,505 16183
Designated for smdent bans 23,096 22,480 Subsequent period operations
Designated for phnt facilitks 725.965 714,944 and other 130,384 204,637
Reinvested distributions of Total temporarily resiricted
donoe-restricted endownents net assets § 1,235,066 § 1,191,216
athistoriat vakie 137,686 133,836
Accurmulated net appreciatin of s Permanently restricted net assets as of June 30 were composed of
re.nve‘sted distrbutions 156,864 144,321 the following (i thonsands):
Instimt ional endow ments
at historical value 265,684 208,716
Accumulated net appreciation of 2013 1012
mstinstiomal endowments 860,088 540,034 Doner-restricted endowments
Fair valee of hiterestrate athistorkealvahe S 1,021,892 $ 962,796
exchange agreements, met {206,733) {315,517 Contributions 44,255 44,101
Net assets related to noncontroling Interests i1 trusts held by others 31,859 32,431
interests 186,901 201,386 Lift fwone and gift ammuz ks 34,413 11,816
Total unrestricted Total pernmnently restricted

et assefs $ 2,971,834 § 2,761,188

$ 1,132,419 $ 1,067,144

net assets

Temporarily restricted net assets as of June 30 were composed of
the following (i thousands):

Based on rehtive fiir values as of Fune 30, 2013, donor-restricted
endowntents supported the following:

2013 2012 2013 2012
Doner-resiricted endowments Financialaid 34% 3495
at historical valie ) 23,434 S 26,889 Endowed chairs %% 29%
Accumufated net appreciation of Cperations 5% PIL]
doner-restricted endowments 1,136,106 1,040,036 Program support 89% 8%
Reinvested distrbutions of Research, ketreships, fetlwships,
denor-restristed endownents and other % §%
athistorical vahie 1.642 L6141 Total support 106% 100%
Accurmfated nat appreciation of
reiwestad distributions 1,927 £,767
Contributions 52,335 101,603
Interests in trusts hald by others 6,233 6,826
Life income and gift annuiiss 13,369 12,454
Total temporarily vestricted
net assets § 1,235,066 $ 1,191,216

13, Fair Value Measurement

Vanderbit wilizes a fad vahwe hisrarchy that prioritizes the inputs
to valuation tecimiques used to measure far vahw iito three kbvelb:

Level 1 luputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active mar-
kets fHr identical assets or Habilities that are accessible at the
measurement date.

Level 2 Inputs are inputs other than quoted prices included in
Levell that are either directly or indirectly observable for the
assets or labilitis.

Level 3 inputs are unobservablk inputs for the assets or liabili-
ties.

The bvel in the fir value hisrarchy within which a fair vale
measurement i1 its entirety is chssified & based on the bwest level
input that & significant to the fax value measwrement.
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The chssification of a financial instrument within level 3 & based
on the significance of the unobservable inputs to the overall fair
va lie measurement.

Allnet realized and wuirealized gains and losses on kvel 3 invest:
wments are reflected in the consolidated statements of activitiss as
changes i1 endowment appreciation or changes in appreciation of
otlier investments. Gains and bsses on investments allocable to
noncontre lfing interests are reported as a component of net endow-
ment appreciation in the consolidated statements of activitics, Net
realized and wnrealized gains and losses on interests in trusts held
by others are reported as changes in appreciztion of other invest-
wments in the consolidated statements of activiies.

Rolforwards of amounts for kvel 3 financial instruments for the
ficalyears ended Tune 30 follow (in thousands):
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Change in
unrealized gains
(losses) for

Realized and Transfers inte investments
unrealized and (ouf) still held at
June 30, 2012 gains (losses) Purchases Sales of level 3 June 30, 2013 June 30, 2013
LEVEL 3 ASSETS
Developed market
aquities $ 32523 2,552 193,470 (206,288) - 22,257 96,679
Emerging narket
squities 108,343 (2,354) - (13,0603 - 92,989 (2.359)
Fixed incone 19,754 {652) 1,503 (2,339 774 19,040 2,898
Absohute return 507,989 52,613 116,975 (147,536} B 530,041 48,981
Other hedge funds 191,688 1410 91,186 {191,688) - 92,596 1,410
Private equity 745,136 83,745 114,456 (177,004) - 766,243 18,218
Venture capital 433,306 55,894 61,968 (63,050) - 488,088 28,053
Realestate 322,856 16,224 39,790 (58,194) (552) 320,124 (17,864
Naturalresources 274,183 2,951 170,477 (§05,669) - 341,942 (1,76%)
Equity method securiies
and tusts 18,082 11,263 853 {1,824) (8,523) 19,853 4,878
Other fwvestments 12,309 (1,193) 60 - - 11,176 5
Enterests i trusts held
by others 39,257 (1,166) 38,691 (1,061}
Total Level 3 § 2,705426 S 221,289 S 790,738 S {966,712) S (8,301) S 2,742,440 $ (15278
Change in
unrealized gains
{lasses) for
Realized and Transfers into investments
unrealized and {out) still held at
June 30, 2011 gains {fosses) Purcliases Sales of leveld June 36,2012 June 36, 2012
LEVEL 3 ASSETS
Developed market
equitis S 70,225 {7,295 7,867 (38,27H - 32,523 (3,014
Etnerg ing market
equitizs 134,448 {19,855 - (6,250} - 108,343 (19,836}
Fived incomme 19,706 581 6,981 (7519 - 19,754 (1,249
Absolute return 612,815 (24,022) 5713 {86,517} - 507,989 (122,215
Cther hedge funds 182,937 8,751 - - - 191,688 8,751
Private equity 754,233 4,088 89,647 (102,832) - 745,136 43,423
Venture capital 395,621 35,74 69,996 (68,035) - 433,306 2,125
Realestate 269,553 43,563 45,694 (35,956) . 322,856 170,196
Naturalresqurces 155,343 11,695 37,948 (30,803} - 274,183 (10,629
Equity method securiies
and trusts 18,367 7,847 3,609 (3.424) (8,317 18,082 {7.032)
Other mivestments 23,779 (6,344) 2,793 (8,133) 214 12,309 17,325
Interests in trusts held
by others 39,362 (105) - - - 39,257 (105}
Total Level 3 § 2,776,389 S 54,630 $ 270,308 S (387,798) S {8,103) S 2,705426 S 71,120

The tables on the following pages present the amounts within each
vakation hirarchy bvel for those assets and lLabilities carried at
fair value: cash and cash equivalents; investments; investments
albeable to noncontrolling interests (in Vanderbik-controlied real
estate and other parinerships); mterests in trusts held by others; and
the fair value of interest rate exchanpe agreements, net,

As a measure of lquidity, the frequencies that investments may be
redeemed or Higuidated are also noted i the following tables, along
with the munbers of days notice required to liquidate investments.

As of lune 30, 2013, 86% of cash and cash equivalents were avaika-
ble on a same-day basis,

Most vestrnents that have been classified as levels 2 and 3 consist
ofshares or wnits in Ervestment fimds as opposed to direct interests
in the fimds? underlying holdings. Since the net asset value reported
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by each find & wsed as a practical expedient to estimate the fair
valie of Vanderbilt’s terest therein, its classification within the
£ value hierarchy as level 2 or level 3 & based on Vanderbilt’s
ability to redeem its interest at or near the fmancilstatenent date,
Vanderbit defines near-tenn as wihin 90 days of the financial
statement date,

Derivative contract collateral and short-fenn secwities are com-
prised primarily ofamounts posted as collateralin accordance with
interest rate exchange agreements and unspent bond proceeds with
trustess, Vanderbilt deems a redemption or liquidation fequency
for these amounts as nonapp lirabk,

Fquites and fixed income provile varying levels of lipuilfy as
defined in the following tabks, As of une 30, 2013, 74%, 64%, and
76% of developed market equitics vahw, emerging market equities
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va ke, and fixed income va ke, respectively, were avaihble for daily
redemption requests with Hquidity wthin 30 days.

Absoltte return and other hedge fimds includes daily, quarterly, and
annua fredemption frequencics, Notice may bes provided to the fnd

managers to exit fom the respective fnds in the time periods not-
ed,

As of une 30, 2013, 20% ofabsohite return investments were com-
prised of hedge finds in “hard bekup® periods of up to 36 months,
during which redemptions or liquidations are not allowed per terms
of the respeotive agreements with fimd managers, Additionally, 6%
of absolute return investments were in “soft bekup™ periods ofup
to nine menths, during which redemptions or liguidations may oc-
cur but are subject to withdrawal penalties ofup to 4.5%.

The total fair values for private equily, venture capital, real estate,
natural resources, and other mvestments were reported as illiquid as
of Tune 30, 2013, These amounts predominantly consst of limited

partnerships. Under the terms of these Limited partnership agree-
ments, Vanderbik is obligated to remit additional fnding periodi-
cally as capital calk are exercised by the general partner. These
partnerships have a limited existence and the agreements may pro-
vide for annual extensions relative to the tining for disposing pott-
fli> positions and refurning capital to investors. Deperding on
market conditions, the ability or inabilily of a fimd o execute its
strategy, and other factors, the general partner may extend the terins
or request an extension of terms of a fimd beyond its originally
antipated exitence or may liquidate the fimd prematrely.
Vanderbilt cannot antioipate such changes because they are based
on unforeszen events. As a result, the timing and amount of fuhure
capialcalk or distributions i any particulir year are wcertain and
the related market values are reported as illiquid,

The following tables swnmarize the fair vakie measwements and
terms for redemptions or liguidations for those assets and Habilities
carrizd at B vahie as of Tane 30 (in thousands):

1013 -
Redemption
-------------------- Fair Value Measurements «eo------eeeeooeomm Group or Liquidation Days
Level 1 Level2 Levell Total Y% Frequency  Notice
ASSETS REPORTED AT FAIR VALUE
Cash and cash equivaknts S 845472 s . s . S 845472 86% Daily same-day
14% Daily 2-00 days
Derivative contract collateral and
short-ferm secur des 93,632 - 93,632 100%% n/a nfa
Equity investments:
Developed tarket equities 625,101 4,733 22,257 652,091 4% Daily 2-30 days
15% Daily neut day
10% Dalty >30 days
19%% Annuaily >30 days
Emerging market equitizs 2744434 - 92,989 367423 61%% Daily 2-30 days
24% Monthly >0 days
129% Quartey > 30 days
Fived income 249,670} B 19,040 268,710 76% Daily nest-day
24%% Daily >30 days
Absohite return 39915 315,388 530,041 905,344 14% Quanterly 30 days
16% Aonually 30 days
26%% Latkup =30 days
13%% nfa =30 days
1% nla nfa
Other hedge fands - 92,596 92,596 160%% Annually >30 days
Private equity . - 766,243 766,243 1% a >30 days
996 1tfa wa
Watwalresourees - - 341,942 341,942 81% nfa nia
19% Quarteily > days
Venture capiral 848 - 188,088 488,936 100%% >hyr n‘a
Realestate - - 320,124 320,124 160% =1yr nfa
Equity method securi s and trusts - - 19,853 19,853 1060% =lyy nfa
Other hivestments 139 - 11,176 11415 100% sy wa
Interests in trusts held by others - - 38,091 38,091 1002% wa wa
Total assets reported at fair value $ 2,149,311 $ 320,121 § 2,742,440 S 5,211,872
LIABILITIES REPORTED AT FAIR VALUE
Interest rate exchange agreements, net ] - S 206,733 S - § 206,733
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2412 :
Redemption
-------------------- Fair Value Measuremsnts -----vccvevmooeoes Group or Liquidation  Days
Levell Level 2 Level 3 Total % Frequency  Notice
ASSETS REPORTED AT FAIRVALUE
Cash and cash equivalkents 3 912419 S - S - S ei2419 $7% Daily sametlay
13% Daity 2-90 days
Dertvative contract collateraland
short-termsecur s 259,835 . - 259,835 1009% nfa wa
Equity fvestrrents:
Developed nmrket equities 101,637 4,10 32,523 138,400 17%% Daily 2-10 days
13% Daily »30 days
3% Aunuatly =30 days
1% nia n'a
Emerging market equities 271,156 - 108,343 379,499 630%% Dally 2-30 days
11% Monthly >3 days
_ . .13%  Qeawterly  >Mdays
Fixed incone 431,466 - 19,754 451,220 51%% Daily next-day
M Daily 1-30 days
15% Daily >30 days
Absohite return 82,847 87,218 507,989 678,064 50% Daily 2-30 days
37% Quarterly >30 days
9% Aonually >3 days
26%% Lockup >30 days
% ufa nla
Other hedge finds - 168,651 191,688 360,369 289 Datly >30 days
27% Quarterly >30 days
15%% Annually >30 days
Private equity - - 745,136 745,136 100% =lyy nfa
Venture capital - - 433,306 433,366 160%% >lyr nfa
Realestate . - 322,85 322,856 100% =lyr nfa
WNaturalresowrees - 274,183 274,183 1009% >iyr na
Fquity method securities and trusts - 18,082 18,082 100%% nfa nla
Other hiveshments 141 12,309 12,450 10054 =hyr nfa
Interests n trusts hekd by others - 39,257 39,257 0% wia nfa
Total assets reported at fair value § 2,059,501 $ 260,149 § 2,705,426 S 5,025,076
LEABILITIES REPORTED AT FAIRVALUE
Tuterest rate exchange agreenments, net s - S 315577 § - S 315577

14. Retirement Plans

Vanderbil’s full-time fculty and staff members participate it de-
fined contribution retirement phns adminbtered by third-paty in-
vestment and insurance fims, For eligible employees with one year
of continuous service, these plans require empbyee and matching
empbyer conteibutions. Such contributions immediately fully vest
wihthe empbyee.

15. Student Financial Aid

Vanderbil’s oblications wader these plns are filly finded by
monthl transfers to the respective retivement plan administrators
with the correspondng expenses recognized in the year incwered.
Vanderbil’s retirement phn contributions for fiscal 2013 and 2012
were $63.0 million and $59.8 million, respectively.

Vanderbilt provides financial aid to students based upon need and
mert. This financil assktance & fimded by institutional resources,
contributibns, endowment distributions, and externally sponsored
programs,

In fiscal 2013 and 2012, financial aid for tution and educational
fees of $200.9 million and $199.3 million was applied to gross
tuiton and educational fees of $475.9 million and $449.4 millon,
respectively. In fiscal 2013 and 2012, financilaid for room and
board of $29.2 million and $28.8 millien was applid to gross
room and board of $69.0 million and $70.1 million, respectively.
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Loans to students from Vanderbik finds are carried at cost, which,
based on sccondary market information, approximates the fir
vahie of educational loans with siuibr interest rates and payment
terms. Loans to qualified students historically have been funnded
principally with government advances to V anderbilt wnder the
Perkins, Nwsing, and Health Professions Student Loan Programs.
Lomns receivabk fom students under governmental ban pro-
erams, ako carrkd at cost, can only be assigned to the federal gov-
ernment or its desiences. Student loan receivables are reported net
of allowanees for estimated uncollectible accounts of $4.5 million
as of Fune 30, 2013 and 20§32,
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16. Natural Classification of Expenses and Allocations

For the fical years ended June 30, operating expenses incuered
were as folbws (fu thousands):

2013 2012
Salarkes, wages, and benefis S 2271192 S 2,195716
Services 208,796 188,488
General expenses and supplics 780,529 726,116
Depreciation md amortization 174,330 172,718
Interest 68,108 67,977
Utilities, operating lkeases, and other 160,145 156,385
Taotal operating expenses S 3,669,100 $ 3,507,400

17. Charity Care Assistance and Community Benefits

Certain albeations of wstitutional and other support costs were
made to Vanderbilt’s primary programs. Based on the flmctional
wses of space on its campus, Vanderbilt allocated depreciation and
interest on mdebtedness fo the fimetional operating expense catego-
ris as shown below (in thousands):

2013
Depreciation Iuterest
Instruction S 19274 $ 3.086
Research 26,784 6,022
Heabh care services 80,239 41,319
Pubtic service 821 103
Academic support 8.41% 1,15%
Student services 1,249 3535
Institutional support 14.80% 1,948
Room, board, and other
auxibary services 22,735 14,120
Total § 174330 § 68,108
012
Depreciation Interest
Instruction S 19,295 S 3,359
Research 27,080 6,276
Health care services 74,548 42,131
Publi: service 815 100G
Academic support 8,241 1,210
Student services 1,207 428
Institutional support 15,147 1,781
Room, board, and other
awxiliary services 22,414 12092
Total s 172,718 s 61,977

VUMC (including hospitals, clindes, and physician practice unis)
maintais a policy which sets forth the criteria pwsuant fo those
health care services that are provided without expectation of pay-
ment, or, at a reduced payment rate fo potients who have minimal
farnc b1 resotrces to pay for their medical care, These services
represent charity care and are not reported as revenue.

The medical center maintains vecords to dentify and monitor the
tevel of charity care & provides, and these records inelode the
amount of gross charges and patient deductb ks, co-msurance and
co-payments forgone for services fienbhed under its cherity care
policy, and the estimated cost of those services. Charity care assis-
tance is oftered on a tiered grid, which is based on federalpoverty
euidelings. In addition to charlly care assistance, all wninswred
patients are cligible for a dBcount ffom billed charges for inedical:
Iy necessaty services that & mandated wnder state of Tennessee
law. For those patients wih a major catastrophic medical event
that does not qualify for full charity assistance, additional dis-
counts are given based on the dncame level of the patient house-
hold using a sliding scale,
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The total cost of uncompensated care {comprismg charity care and
bad debt) was $137.8 million and $134.3 million for fiscal 2013
and 2012, respectively. OF the total incompensated care, charity
care represented 85.3% and 84.8% i fiscal 2013 and 20132, respec-
tively.

In addition to the charity care services deserbed above, the medi-
cal center provides a number of other services to benefit the eco-
nomically disadvantaged for which little or no payment 5 re-
ceived, TermCare/Medicaid and state indigent programs do not
cover the full cost of providing care to beneficiaries of those pro-
grams, As a result, in addition to direct charity care costs, the med-
ical center provided services rehted to TennCare/Medicaid and
state mdigent programs substantilly bebnv the cost of rendering
such services. ‘

The medicalcenter ako provides public health education and frai-
ing for new health professinak and provides, without charge,
services to the commumiy at large, together with support groups
for many patisnts with speeialneeds.
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13, Related Parties

Intermittently, members of Vanderbil’s Board of Trwst or
Vanderbik employees may be directly or indirectly associted with
companies engaged in business activirizs with the university. Ae-
cordingly, Vanderbilt has a written conflict of interest policy that
requires, among other things, that members of the wniversily com-
mumity (nchidig trustees) may not revisw, approve, or adiministra-
tively eontrol contracts or busmess relationships when (a) the con-
fract or business rehtionship is between Vanderbik and a business
in which the individual or a family member has a material financial
interest or (b the individual or a fanily member & an emphbyee of
the business and & directy involved with activitks pertaining to
Vanderbik.

Furthermore, Vanderbil’s conflict ofinterest policy extends beyond
the foregoing business activities  that discbsure is requived for
any sitation in which an applicable individuals financial, profes.
sional or other personal activities may directly or indirectly affect,
or have the appearance of affecting, an individuals professional

19. Lease Obligations

judgment in exercising any university duty or responsivility, inchud-
g the conduet or reporting of research.

The policy extends to all members of the universiy commmnity
(ichdng tustees, university officiak, and facully and staff and
the hrmmediate Funily members). Each applicable person 15 re-
quied to certify compliance with the conflict of interest policy on
an anmnl basis, This certification inchudes specifically disclosing
whether Vanderbik conducts business with an entity in which lic or
she {or an iinmediate family member) has a material financial inter-
est as well as any other situation that potentially could be perceived
to conflict with Vanderbilt's best interests.

When sifuations exist relative to the conflict of interest poley, ac-
tive measwes are taken to appropriately manage the actualor per-
ceived conflict i the best iterests of the univers2y, inchuding peri-
odix reporting of the measures taken to the Board of Trust Audit
Committee,

Vanderbik kases certam equipment and real property. These keases
are ¢ hssified primarily as operating leases and have kase terms of
up to 15 years. Total operating lease expense in fiscal 2013 and
2012 was $64.7 million and $56.1 million, respectively,

20. Commitiments and Contingencies

As of lune 30, 2013, furwre committed minimum rentals by fiscal
vear on significant nonecancelable operating kases with initial or
remaiing lease tenus in excess of one year were as flbws (i
thousands}:

2014 S 49,428
2015 38,362
2016 30270
1017 25,079
2018 19,879
Thereafter 37,313
Total future mininnim rentals £ 191,333

(A) Construction. As of Tune 30, 2013, approximately $123.7 mil
lion was contractually committed for projects under construction
and equipment purchases, The largest components of these com:
mitments were for the sccond plase of Vanderbilt's residential
colkges propram, Colkge Halls at Kissam (381.0 million); Van-
derbik Recreation and Welbess Center expansion ($14.0 milton);
and floor buikd-outs in the CritialCare Tower of the adult hospial
(510.8 million).

(B) Lirigation. Vanderbilt is a defendant i several kgal actions,
One such kegalaction & a qui fam civil action relited to billing and
government reimbursement for certain professional health care
services provided by the Vanderbilh University Medical Center.
The hwsul is related to an ongo g civil investigation by the U.S,
Depariment of Justice and the Office of Inspector General for the
Depariment of Health and Human Services and Vanderbikt & fully
cooperating with the investigation. Vanderbik belisves that the
outcome of these actions will not have a significant effeet on its
conso tidated financial positin,

(C) Regulations. Vanderbil's compliance with regulations and
Taws is subject to fihwe government reviews and Iuterpretations, as
well as regulatory actions unknown or wnasserted at this time,
Vanderbik believes that the liability, ifany, fom sueh reviews will
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not have a significant effect on Vanderbili’s consolidated financial
position,

D) Medical Malpractice Liability Insurance, Vanderbilt is selfs
insured for the first level of medical malkractive chims, The ewr-
rent selfmsured retention is $5.5 million per occurace, not fo
exceed an anmunl aggregate of $43.0 milkion. For this selfinsured
retention, mvestments have been segregated. The funding for these
segregated assets is based upon studies performed by an independ-
ent achmrial fin, Excess malpractie and professional liability
coverage has been obtained from conunercial insurance carriers on
a chims-made basis for chins above the retained selfiinsurance
risk levels.

(E) Emplayee Healtli and TWorkers Compensalion Insurance.
Vanderbil # selfiinsured for employee health insurance and work-
ers compensation coverage. Vanderbilt's estimated labilities are
based upon shudiss conducted by independent actuariafirms.

(F) Federal and State Contracts and Other Reguirements. Expend-
ifures related to federaland state grants and contracts are subject to
adjustment based upon review by the granting agencies. The
amounts, if any, of expenditwes that may be disallowed by the
granting agencis and the resullant fmpact on government grants
and contract revenus as well as facilities and admindstrative cost
recovery camilot be determingd at this time, although management




Vanderbilt University

expects they willnot have a sienifiant effect on Vanderbilt's con-
solidated financial position.

{G) Health Care Services. Reverwe from healh care services in-
cludes amounts paid under reinbwsement agreements with certain
third-party payors and is subject to exammation and retroactive
adjustments. Any difftrences between estimated year-end settle-
ments and actual final settkments are reported i the year final
settkbments are known. Substantially all final settlements have
been deteimined through the year ended June 30, 2010, Final set-
tlements re htive to periods through June 30, 2011, are expected to
be complete during fiscal 2014,

(H) HIPAA Complianece. Under the Health Insurance Portability
and Accountability Act of 1996 (HIPAA), the foderal government
has authority to complete fraud and abuse investigations, HIPAA
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has established substantial fines and penaltics for offenders, Van-
derbili mamntains policies, procedures, and organizational strue.
tures to enforee and moniter complianee with HIPAA, as well as
other applicable beal state and federalstatutes and reguhtions,

(1} Partnership Investment Conmnitinents. There were $555.3 mil:
Hon of conmmiments to venture capial real estate, and private
equity mvestments as of June 30, 2013, These fimds may be drawn
down over the next several years upon request by the generalpart.
ners, Vanderbilt expects to finance these commitments with avaib
able cash and expected proceeds from the saks of securities. In
addition, Vanderbilt is a secondary guarantor for $21.8 million of
commiments for certain investment vehicles where minerity lim.
ited partners in subsidiaries that Vanderbik controks have the pri-
mary cblgations.




